
	

1	
	

	
	

REGULAR MEETING of the Board of Directors of the 
Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (PCEA) 

Thursday, May 25, 2017 
 

San Mateo County Office of Education, Corte Madera Room  
101 Twin Dolphin Drive, Redwood City, CA 94065 

6:30 p.m.  
	
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special assistance or a 
disability-related modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to 
participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for 
the agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the 
meeting, should contact Anne Bartoletti, Board Clerk, at least 2 working days before the 
meeting at abartoletti@peninsulacleanenergy.com. Notification in advance of the meeting will 
enable the PCEA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting and 
the materials related to it. Attendees to this meeting are reminded that other attendees may be 
sensitive to various chemical based products. 

  
If you wish to speak to the Board, please fill out a speaker’s slip located on the tables as you 
enter the Board meeting room. If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the Board 
and included in the official record, please hand it to a member of PCEA staff who will distribute 
the information to the Board members and other staff. 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any PCEA-related matters 
that are as follows: 1) Not otherwise on this meeting agenda; 2) Listed on the Consent Agenda 
and/or Closed Session Agenda; 3) Chief Executive Officer’s or Staff Report on the Regular 
Agenda; or 4) Board Members’ Reports on the Regular Agenda. Public comments on matters 
not listed above shall be heard at the time the matter is called.  
  
As with all public comment, members of the public who wish to address the Board are 
requested to complete a speaker’s slip and provide it to PCEA staff. Speakers are customarily 
limited to two minutes, but an extension can be provided to you at the discretion of the Board 
Chair. 
 
ACTION TO SET AGENDA and TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
This item is to set the final consent and regular agenda, and for the approval of the items listed 
on the consent agenda. All items on the consent agenda are approved by one action.  
 
 
 
 
 



	

2	
	

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

1. Chair Report (Discussion) 

2. CEO Report (Discussion) 

3. Marketing and Outreach Report (Discussion) 
 

4. Regulatory and Legislative Report (Discussion) 
 

5. Approve Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget (Action) 
 

6. Review Draft Budget (Discussion) 
 

7. Financial Report (Discussion) 
 

8. Review and Adopt Policy Regarding Customer Debt Collections (Action) 
 

9. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) 
for Renewable Supply with Shiloh 1 Wind Project LLC, an Oregon limited liability 
company, and any necessary ancillary documents.  Power Delivery Term:   Five 
years, in an amount not to exceed $65,000,000 (Action)  
 

10. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an EEI (Edison Electric Institute) 
Master Agreement and Confirmation Agreement for Purchase of Carbon Free Energy 
from Powerex.  Power Delivery Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, in an 
amount not to exceed $700,000 (Action) 
 

11. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an EEI (Edison Electric Institute) 
Confirmation Agreement, and any necessary ancillary documents, for Purchase of 
PCC1 Renewable Energy from Powerex.  Power Delivery Term: May 1, 2017 through 
December 31, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000 (Action) 
 

12. Appoint Citizens Advisory Committee members (Action) 
 

13. Board Members’ Reports (Discussion) 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

14. Approval of the Minutes for the April 27th, 2017 Meeting (Action) 
 

15. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an EEI (Edison Electric Institute) 
Confirmation Agreement for purchase of Resource Adequacy from Energy America 
(Direct Energy).  Delivery Term: August 1 through September 30, 2017, in an amount 
not to exceed $120,000. (Action) 



	

3	
	

 

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular board meeting 
are available for public inspection.  Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior 
to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all 
members, or a majority of the members of the Board.  The Board has designated the 
Peninsula Clean Energy office, located at 555 Marshall St, 2nd Floor, Redwood City, CA 
94063, for the purpose of making those public records available for inspection.  The 
documents are also available on the PCEA’s Internet Web site.  The website is located at: 
http://www.peninsulacleanenergy.com. 

 

	



 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

Item No. 5 

 
DATE: May 19, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Approve amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve an amendment to the 2016-2017 budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On July 14, 2016, the Board approved the 2016-17 fiscal year budget. Certain factors 
have changed since PCE staff made the original assumptions which necessitate an 
adjustment to the budget. The main reasons for the adjustments are: 1) lower than 
expected opt out rates, 2) legal counsel costs associated with the negotiation of energy 
procurement contracts, and 3) increased costs for outreach and communication.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The amended budget lines and a brief description of each are as follows in order of 
presentation: 
 
Revenue-Electricity –  The combination of lower opt out rates and greater overall 
customer electricity usage than anticipated requires an increase to budgeted revenue. 
The proposed Revenue-Electricity budget increase is $10,687,000. 
 
Other Source-bank loan proceeds – In June 2016 PCE obtained a bank loan from 
Barclay’s Bank of $12,000,000 to provide for operational costs, particularly to fund large 
energy purchases. Since that time, PCE has entered into contracts with favorable rates 
and terms and does not anticipate needing the entire available balance. PCE drew 
$3,000,000 just prior to the 2016/17 fiscal year.  The original budget that was adopted 
expected that the $3,000,000 draw to occur in the current fiscal year.  Although we do 



 
 

2 
 

not think PCE will need to draw any more on the loan, we are providing for the 
possibility of a total of $4,000,000 of bank loans to provide for certain energy costs that 
may be accelerated into the fiscal year outside of our control. The proposed Other 
Source-bank loan proceeds budget decrease is $8,000,000. 
 
Cost of Energy –  The original budget included conservative estimates for cost of 
energy that had not yet been procured. PCE was able to procure energy at rates lower 
than originally assumed. These favorable rates outweigh the additional volume that was 
procured due to lower opt out rates. The proposed Cost of Energy budget decrease 
is $2,850,000. 
 
Internal Staffing – Staffing costs are under budget mostly due to delays in the timing of 
new hires. The proposed Internal Staffing budget decrease is $500,000. 
 
Benefits – Staffing Benefits costs are under budget mostly due to delays in the timing 
of new hires. The proposed Internal Benefits budget decrease is $255,000. 
 
Outreach and Communications – Additional budget is needed to allow for the 
massive advertising push for phase 2. The proposed Outreach and Communications 
budget increase is $100,000. 
 
Technical Consultants – In house staff has assumed some of the responsibility for this 
work. The proposed Technical Consultants budget decrease is $25,000. 
 
Legal and Regulatory – PCE’s energy procurement during the year has occurred at a 
faster pace than expected. Due to the complexities and importance of the underlying 
agreements, all contracts are thoroughly reviewed by outside legal firms. The 
proposed Legal and Regulatory budget increase is $450,000. 
 
Data Manager – PCE contracts with Calpine Energy Solutions to maintain the customer 
database, perform billing data validation, manage the call center and billing support, 
and many other services. Our contract with Calpine is a single fixed per meter charge. 
Due to customer opt outs being lower than expected, the aggregate cost of the per 
meter charge has increased. This budget increase will account for the additional 
charges related to these unanticipated customers. The proposed Data Manager 
budget increase is $175,000. 
 
Customer Noticing – Costs of designing and delivering required mailers to PCE’s 
customers is proving to be less that originally estimated. Part of this decrease is due to 
delivery of Phase 2 notifications by bulk mail rather than first class mail.  The proposed 
Customer Noticing budget decrease is $75,000. 
 
Energy Programs – The original budget provided for certain program expenses outside 
the normal operational scope of PCE, as well as a provision for Net Energy Metering 
(NEM) cash outs. Subsequently, PCE has determined that the NEM cash outs are not a 
separate budget expense, because the cost of the NEM program is effectively included 
in the cost of energy. The true cost of the NEM program is not reflected by the year end 



 
 

3 
 

cash out; there are benefits to the customers throughout the year regardless of whether 
a cash out is received. PCE does intend to leave $100,000 in this program budget to 
allow for local demonstration project costs that may be incurred in the fiscal year. The 
proposed Energy Programs budget decrease is $922,500. 
 
PG&E Service Fees – As mandated by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC), PG&E charges PCE a service fee of $0.44 per account per month. In addition 
to these per account charges, this budget category also includes minor fees associated 
with data requests from PG&E. Due to customer opt outs being lower than expected, 
the aggregate cost of the per account charge has increased. This budget increase will 
account for the additional charges related to these unanticipated customers. The 
proposed PG&E Service Fee budget increase is $30,000. 
 
General and Administration– Costs have been less than anticipated, largely driven by 
lower rent than expected. The proposed General and Administration budget 
decrease is $100,000. 
 
Rate Stabilization Reserve– The reserve has been adjusted to reflect 5% of the 
amended revenue (excluding Other Sources). The proposed Rate Stabilization 
Reserve budget increase is $2,440,000. 
 
Bad Debt Reserve– Bad debt is now reported as a reduction in revenue. The rate is 
0.35% of revenues. The proposed Bad Debt Reserve budget decrease is $300,590. 
 
CCA Bond, CAISO and PG&E deposits – Only the $100,000 CCA bond was required 
of PCE. The proposed CCA Bond, CAISO and PG&E deposits budget decrease is 
$535,000. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The net fiscal impact shows a budgeted increase in net position for FY 2016-2017 of 
$14,960,090, for a total of $19,099,161. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. PCE 2016-2017 Budget Adjustment Spreadsheet 
 

 



 2016/17 Annual Budget   Proposed Amendment 
 2016/17 Proposed 

Amended 
REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES

    Revenue - Electricity, net 85,882,760$                    10,687,000$                    96,569,760$                    
    Revenue - Green Premium, net 267,843                           267,843                           
    Other Source - bank loan proceeds 12,000,000                      (8,000,000)                      4,000,000                        
      Total revenue and other sources 98,150,603                      2,687,000                        100,837,603                    

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES
    Cost of energy 73,298,147                      (2,850,000)                      70,448,147                      
    Internal staffing 1,711,250                        (500,000)                         1,211,250                        
    Benefits 673,000                           (255,000)                         418,000                           
    Outreach and communications 440,000                           100,000                           540,000                           
    Technical consultants 255,000                           (25,000)                           230,000                           
    Legal and regulatory 450,000                           450,000                           900,000                           
    Data manager 1,363,853                        175,000                           1,538,853                        
    Customer noticing 755,000                           (75,000)                           680,000                           
    Energy Programs (including NEM) 1,022,500                        (922,500)                         100,000                           
    PG&E service fees 564,892                           30,000                             594,892                           
    General and administration 800,625                           (100,000)                         700,625                           
      Total current expenditures 81,334,267                      (3,972,500)                      77,361,767                      

OTHER USES
    Rate stabilization reserve 4,757,530                        2,440,000                        7,197,530                        
    Bad debt reserve 300,590                           (300,590)                         -                                      
    CCA Bond, CAISO and PG&E deposits 635,000                           (535,000)                         100,000                           
      Total other uses 5,693,120                        1,604,410                        7,297,530                        

DEBT SERVICE 376,675                           -                                      376,675                           

     Total expenditures, Other Uses and Debt Service 87,404,062                      (2,368,090)                      85,035,972                      
    Net increase (decrease) 10,746,541$                    5,055,090$                      15,801,631$                    

Reconciliation to change in net position:
    Remove: Other Source - bank loan proceeds (12,000,000)                    8,000,000                        (4,000,000)                      
    Add: Rate stabilization reserve 4,757,530                        2,440,000                        7,197,530                        
    Add: CCA Bond, CAISO and PG&E deposits 635,000                           (535,000)                         100,000                           
      Net increase (decrease) in net position 4,139,071$                      14,960,090$                    19,099,161$                    

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY
OPERATING FUND

PROPOSE BUDGET AMENDMENT
FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017



 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

Item No. 6 

 
DATE: May 19, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Review Draft Budget (Discussion) 

 
DISCUSSION: 
A draft of the Peninsula Clean Energy budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 will be provided 
at the May 25 board meeting for general discussion.  Based on this discussion, the 
budget will be more closely reviewed by the PCE Audit and Finance Committee in early 
June.  Upon that Committee’s recommendation, the final budget will be presented to the 
board at the June 22 board meeting for discussion and approval. 
 

 



Item No. 7 

	
	
	

7.  Financial Report (Discussion) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place holder – to be distributed separately. 



Item No. 8 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

 

 
DATE: May 17, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: 
 

Adopt Policy regarding Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Delinquent 
Accounts and Bad Debt Collections 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt policy specifying the terms for delinquent accounts to be returned to PG&E and 
addressing bad debt from closed accounts. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
PCEA currently has very broad policies regarding returning customers to PG&E bundled 
service within our Terms and Conditions.  This policy will clarify the timeframe and 
threshold for Delinquent Accounts to be notified and, if necessary, returned to PG&E 
bundled service. This policy also addresses thresholds for Bad Debt collections and 
write-offs from closed accounts.  
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Since beginning service in October 2016, PCEA has been accruing balances from both 
Delinquent Accounts from active customers and Bad Debt from closed accounts. In the 
case of active customers, PG&E continues to send monthly billing notices with past due 
balance alerts.  However, to ensure that PCEA is being appropriately compensated for 
energy procurement services, it is prudent to set thresholds for returning non-paying 
customers to PG&E bundled service.  
 
Delinquent Accounts from Active Customers 
It is proposed that PCEA set Delinquent Account thresholds for active customers of 90 
days/$250 for residential customers and 60 days/$500 non-residential customers.  



Item No. 8 
 

2 
 

These thresholds are consistent with the practices of the other CCAs currently in 
operation. 
 
Bad Debt from Closed Accounts 
When an account discontinues service with PG&E, PG&E will attempt to collect any 
unpaid balances for a period of 52 days. After 52 days any unpaid balances owed to 
PCEA will be returned to PCEA to collect or discharge at its discretion. Staff is proposing 
that the Board adopt a policy to discharge debts below $50 and authorize debts over $50 
to be turned over to a collections service selected by Staff. In surveying other CCAs with 
regards to debt collection, a $50 threshold was determined to be the most appropriate 
level. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Defining Delinquent Account actions for account termination and allowing for Bad Debt 
collection for closed accounts is in line with creating sound fiscal management policies 
for Peninsula Clean Energy Authority. Expected revenue from Bad Debt collections is 
expected to be consistent with what other CCAs have experienced, with approximately 
10% of debts recovered.  PCE has previously set a policy to create a Bad Debt reserve 
of 0.35% of total revenues which should cover the non-recovered amounts.   
 
 
 
 

 
 



Policy Number: 13 
	
Adoption Date: 

	
	

:  
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Subject: Delinquent Accounts and Bad Debt Collections Policy 

	

Policy:  
 
DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS  
 
Residential:  Peninsula Clean Energy customer accounts exceeding $250 in 
charges overdue for more than 90 days will be sent a late payment notification 
by PCE. The customer will be provided 60 days to pay or make payment 
arrangements. If payment in full is not received within 60 days, or the terms of 
an activated payment arrangement are not fulfilled, the PCE customer account 
will be closed and returned to PG&E bundled generation service on the next 
account meter read date. Residential customers returned to PG&E will be 
charged the applicable PCE opt-out fee and are subject to the applicable terms 
and conditions provided in PG&E Electric Rule 23.  
 
Non-residential:  Non-residential customer accounts exceeding $500 in 
aggregate in unpaid charges for 60 days or more will be sent a late payment 
notification by PCE. The customer will be provided 30 days to pay or make 
payment arrangements. If payment in full is not received within 30 days, or the 
terms of an activated payment arrangement are not fulfilled, the PCE customer 
account will be closed and returned to PG&E bundled generation service on the 
next account meter read date. Non-residential customers returned to PG&E will 
be charged the applicable PCE opt-out fee and are subject to the applicable 
terms and conditions provided in PG&E Electric Rule 23.  
 
BAD DEBT AND COLLECTIONS 
 
Closed Peninsula Clean Energy accounts with overdue amounts greater than 
$50 may be referred to a collection agent.  Amounts of $50 or less may be 
written off.    
 



PG&E may close customer accounts before payment delinquencies bring them 
to the attention of Peninsula Clean Energy operations.  When PG&E closes 
customer accounts, these accounts are also closed in the Peninsula Clean 
Energy program.  In these cases, the thresholds outlined in the preceding 
paragraph apply in either referring closed accounts to collections or writing off 
balances. 
 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 



Item No. 9 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

 

 
DATE: May 22, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Renewable Supply (Shiloh) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) for 
Renewable Supply with Shiloh I Wind Project LLC, an Oregon limited liability company, 
and any necessary ancillary documents.  Power Delivery Term:  Five years, in an 
amount not to exceed $65,000,000 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Peninsula Clean Energy board adopted a strategic goal to source 100% of PCE’s 
energy from California RPS eligible renewables by 2025.  As a first step in meeting this 
strategic goal, PCE issued a request for proposals for renewable energy on October 17, 
2016.  On November 7, 2016, PCE received 242 responses from 62 projects.  Over the 
past several months, PCE staff has been evaluating the proposals and conducting 
negotiations with some of the bidders.  In previous Board meetings, the PCE board has 
approved seven PPAs (two solar, two wind and three small hydro projects).  In this board 
meeting, PCE staff is presenting one additional agreement that is the subject of this 
memo and expects to present several more as we continue to evaluate and finalize 
negotiations with the projects that best fit PCE’s needs. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
At the October 27, 2016 board meeting, PCE described its strategy to diversify its power 
supply, and consider contract length, project ownership, project location, and project 
technology in selecting projects.   Other key issues considered in the evaluation include 



Item No. 9 
 

2 
 

the proper mix of renewables in terms of Bucket 1 and Bucket 2 resources, power price, 
and the use of labor agreements for new projects.   
 
One transaction is presented to the PCE board for approval today.  We are asking that 
the board authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an agreement, with terms 
consistent with those shown in the attached forms, as well as any necessary ancillary 
documents, subject to the condition that the average cost of power purchased through 
the agreement shall not exceed a cost threshold of $50 per megawatt-hour (MWh) over 
the term of the agreement.  
 
The project is an agreement with Shiloh I Wind Project LLC for an existing wind project 
in Solano County, California (Shiloh I Wind Project LLC), with a five year power delivery 
term.  
 
The Shiloh I Wind Project LLC is an existing 150 MW project with PCE’s energy 
deliveries to start on January 1, 2019 and to end on December 31, 2023.  During 2019 
and 2020, PCE will have a 16.7% share of the project output; during 2021, PCE’s share 
will increase in two steps to 83.3%; and during 2022 and 2023, PCE will receive 100% of 
the project’s output.  These percentages correspond to the dates on which three existing 
contracts for the project’s output are scheduled to expire. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Payments for power purchased through the Shiloh project will not exceed $65 million 
over the term of this agreement.  
 

 
 

 



		

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 

 *   *   *   *   *   *  

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO (A) EXECUTE A POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH SHILOH I WIND 

PROJECT LLC, AN OREGON LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WITH TERMS 

CONSISTENT WITH THOSE PRESENTED, IN A FORM APPROVED BY THE 

GENERAL COUNSEL AND FOR A POWER DELIVERY TERM OF UP TO 5 YEARS, 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $65,000,000;  

 

(B) EXECUTE SUCH OTHER ANCILLARY DOCUMENTS, IN A FORM APPROVED 

BY GENERAL COUNSEL, AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE PURCHASE 

OF SUCH POWER FROM SHILOH I WIND PROJECT LLC. 

______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLVED, by the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority of the County of San 

Mateo, State of California, that 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Peninsula Clean Energy” or 

“PCEA”) was formed on February 29, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, launch of service for Phase I occurred in October 2016, and launch 

of service for Phase II occurred in April 2017; and 



		

WHEREAS, Peninsula Clean Energy is ready to purchase energy, renewable 

energy, carbon free energy, and related products and services (the “Products”) to 

supply Phase II of its launch; and 

WHEREAS, in Fall 2016, consistent with its mission of reducing greenhouse gas 

emissions and offering customer choice at competitive rates, Peninsula Clean Energy 

administered a competitive process to select one or more power supply contractors; and 

WHEREAS, one of the providers selected by Peninsula Clean Energy through 

this competitive process is Shiloh I Wind Project LLC, an Oregon limited liability 

company, (“Contractor”), based on its desirable offering of Products, pricing, and terms; 

and  

WHEREAS, staff is presenting to the Board for its review the negotiated Power 

Purchase Agreement, reference to which should be made for further particulars; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer authority 

to execute the aforementioned Power Purchase Agreement and any other ancillary 

documents required for said purchase of power from the Contractor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to:  

(A)  Execute the Power Purchase Agreement with the Contractor with terms consistent 

with those presented, in a form approved by the General Counsel and for a power 

delivery term of up to 5 years, in an amount not to exceed $65,000,000;   



		

(B)  Execute such other ancillary documents, in a form approved by General 

Counsel, as may be necessary to effectuate purchase of such power from the 

Contractor. 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 



























































































































































 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

Item No. 10 

 
DATE: May 18, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Carbon Free Energy (Powerex) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an EEI (Edison Electric Institute) Master 
Agreement and Confirmation Agreement for Purchase of Carbon Free Energy from 
Powerex, and any necessary ancillary documents.  Power Delivery Term: July 1, 2017 
through June 30, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $700,000. (Action) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
PCE has purchased Carbon Free Energy to meet its Phase 1 obligations to customers.  
With the launch of Phase 2, PCE needs to purchase additional Carbon Free Energy to 
meet its obligations to customers.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
PCE, working with its consultant PEA, solicited bids to supply Carbon Free Energy for its 
2017 Phase 2 needs.  Bids were received from five different suppliers to satisfy PCE’s 
carbon free energy needs for 2017 and 2018.  Powerex provided quantity and pricing 
that met PCE’s objectives.      
 
PCE and Powerex have agreed to use the EEI Master Agreement for this purchase of 
Carbon Free Energy.  The Board is being asked to authorize the CEO to execute an EEI 
Master Agreement and Confirmation Agreement with Powerex, and any necessary 
ancillary documents, in forms approved by General Counsel.  
 
 
 



 
 

2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Payments for the purchase of Carbon Free Energy from Powerex for July 1, 2017 
through June 30, 2018 will not exceed $700,000. 
 
 

 
 

 
 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 

 *   *   *   *   *   *  

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO EXECUTE A MASTER AGREEMENT AND A CONFIRMATION AGREEMENT 

WITH POWEREX CORP. FOR CARBON FREE ENERGY WITH TERMS 

CONSISTENT WITH THOSE PRESENTED, IN A FORM APPROVED BY THE 

GENERAL COUNSEL AND FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2017 THROUGH JUNE 

30, 2018 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $700,000 

______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLVED, by the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority of the County of San 

Mateo, State of California, that 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Peninsula Clean Energy” or 

“PCE”) was formed on February 29, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, as was true in 2016, PCE has ongoing commitments to purchase 

Carbon Free Energy; and 

WHEREAS, in January 2017 PCE requested prices for Carbon Free Energy from 

multiple energy suppliers to serve Phase 2 customers in 2017 and 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Powerex Corp. provided a competitively priced option for Carbon 

Free Energy for July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018; and 



2 

 

WHEREAS, PCE has negotiated a Confirmation Agreement with Powerex Corp. 

for the necessary volumes, reference to which should be made for further particulars; 

and 

WHEREAS, both parties are agreeable to using the Edison Electric Institute 

(“EEI”) model master agreement for this purchase.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to execute a Master Agreement 

and a Confirmation Agreement with Powerex Corp. for Carbon Free Energy with terms 

consistent with those presented, in a form approved by the General Counsel and for a 

term covering July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 in an amount not to exceed 

$700,000. 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 



Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 
©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

MASTER POWER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

COVER SHEET 

This Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement (Version 2.1, modified 4/25/00) (“Master Agreement”) is made as 
of the following date: May 18, 2017 (“Effective Date”).  The Master Agreement, together with the exhibits, 
schedules and any written supplements hereto, the Party A Tariff, if any, the Party B Tariff, if any, any designated 
collateral, credit support or margin agreement or similar arrangement between the Parties and all Transactions 
(including any confirmations accepted in accordance with Section 2.3 hereto) shall be referred to as the 
“Agreement.”  The Parties to this Master Agreement are the following: 

Name:  Powerex Corp.* (“Powerex” or “Party A”) 

* Powerex Corp., doing business in California as 
Powerex Energy Corp. 

Name: Peninsula Clean Energy Authority, a 
California joint powers authority (“PCEA” or “Party B”) 

All Notices: All Notices: 

Street: Suite 1300 – 666 Burrard Street Street: 455 County Center, 4th Floor 

City: Vancouver, B.C.    Zip: V6C 2X8 City: Redwood City, CA                   Zip: 94063 

Attn: Manager, Contracts  
Phone: (604) 891-6090  
Facsimile: (604) 891-5006  
E-mail: powerex.legalservices@powerex.com 
Duns: 25-330-1949  
Federal Tax ID Number: 98-0164470  

Attn: Siobhan Doherty, Contracts Manager 
Phone:  (650) 561-6645  
Facsimile: (650) 363-4034  
E-mail: sdoherty@peninsulacleanenergy.com  
Duns: 080262114  
Federal Tax ID Number: 81-2708786  

Invoices: 
Attn: Finance Department    
Phone: (604) 891-5023  
Facsimile: (604) 891-6011  

      Email:  powerex.finance@powerex.com 
 

Invoices: 
Attn: Anne Bartoletti 
Phone: (650) 350-9514  
Facsimile: (650) 363-4034  

Scheduling: 
Attn: Daily Optimization & Scheduling  
Phone: (604) 891-5007  
Facsimile: (604) 891-5045  
Email:  presched@powerex.com 

Scheduling: 
Phone: (650) 561-6645  
Address: 455 County Center, 4th Floor  
Redwood City, CA 94063  
Email: sdoherty@peninsulacleanenergy.com  

Payments: 
Attn:  Finance Department  
Phone: (604) 891-5023  
Facsimile: (604) 891-6011  
E-mail: powerex.finance@powerex.com  

 

Payments: 
Attn: Anne Bartoletti 
Phone: (650) 350-9514  
Facsimile: (650) 363-4034  
E-mail: abartoletti@peninsulacleanenergy.com  

Wire Transfer:  
  

       
   

          

Wire Transfer: 
  

  
   

Beneficiary’s Bank:  
  

 
      

 

 

mailto:powerex.legalservices@powerex.com
mailto:powerex.finance@powerex.com
mailto:presched@powerex.com
mailto:powerex.finance@powerex.com
mailto:abartoletti@peninsulacleanenergy.com


 

2 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

Credit and Collections: 
Attn: Credit Manager  
Phone: (604) 891-6095  
Facsimile: (604) 891-5025  

Credit and Collections: 
Attn: Janis Pepper 
Phone: (415) 309-9206  
Facsimile: (650) 363-4034  

With additional Notices of an Event of Default or 
Potential Event of Default to: 

Attn: Director, Risk Management  
Phone: (604) 891- 5041  
Facsimile: (604) 891-5056  

With additional Notices of an Event of Default or 
Potential Event of Default to: 

Attn: Janis Pepper  
Phone: (415) 309-9206  
Facsimile: (650) 363-4034  

 
The Parties hereby agree that the General Terms and Conditions are incorporated herein, and to the following 
provisions as provided for in the General Terms and Conditions: 

Party A Tariff: FERC Rate Schedule No. 1, effective April 7, 2014, Docket No. ER14-1281-000. 
Party B Tariff: Tariff   Dated   Docket Number   

Article Two  

Transaction Terms and 
Conditions 

  Optional provision in Section 2.4.   If not checked, inapplicable. 

Article Four  

Remedies for Failure  
to Deliver or Receive 

  Accelerated Payment of Damages. If not checked, inapplicable. 

Article Five     

Events of Default; Remedies        

             
  

 

      

   
 

 

       

 5.6  Closeout Setoff 

  Option A (Applicable if no other selection is made.) 

  Option B - Affiliates shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

  Option C (No Setoff) 

Article 8 8.1  Party A Credit Protection: 

Credit and Collateral 
Requirements 

(a)  Financial Information:  

    
    
     

 
 



 

3 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

 
 

      
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 (b)  Credit Assurances: 

   
  

 
 

 
 
 

 (c)  Collateral Threshold: 

  
 

  

 

 

  

  

 (d)  Downgrade Event: 

  



 

4 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

  

  

   
 

 

    
 

 
 

 

 (e)  Guarantor for Party B:  

  
 

 8.2  Party B Credit Protection: 

 (a)   

   
  

 
 

 

 

 (b)  Credit Assurances: 

  
 

 (c)  Collateral Threshold: 

  
 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  
 
  

  
   

 
 

 



 

5 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

 

  

  

 (d)  Downgrade Event: 

   
  

  

   
 

  

  
 

 (e)  Guarantor for Party A:  

  
 

Article 10  

Confidentiality    Confidentiality Applicable If not checked, inapplicable. 

Schedule M  

    Party A is a Governmental Entity or Public Power System 
   Party B is a Governmental Entity or Public Power System 
   Add Section 3.6.  If not checked, inapplicable 
    Add Section 8.6.  If not checked, inapplicable 

Other Changes 

 

Cover Sheet:  Schedule M 

The Cover Sheet is revised by deleting the reference “Section 8.6” and replacing it with 
“Section 8.4”. 

 
Article One:  General Definitions 
 
Section 1.1 is revised by adding the following sentence to the end of the definition: 
 

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) the sole Affiliate with respect to Party A shall 
be British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority, and (ii) the public entities that are 
or hereafter become “Parties” under the Joint Powers Agreement (referred to herein 
as “members” of Party B) shall not constitute or otherwise be deemed an 
“Affiliate” of Party B for the purposes of this Master Agreement or any 
Confirmation.” 

 
Section 1.4 is amended by deleting the first sentence and replacing it to read as follows: 
“Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, the Friday immediately 
following the Thanksgiving holiday, Easter Monday, a Canadian bank or Federal Reserve 
holiday or any statutory holiday in British Columbia”. 
 
Section 1.12 is revised to read as follows: 
 

“1.12 “Credit Rating” means, with respect to any entity, the rating then assigned by 



 

6 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

Moody’s, S&P or any other rating agency agreed by the Parties as set forth in the 
Cover Sheet, to such entity’s senior unsecured long-term debt obligations (not 
supported by insurance provider enhancements) or if such entity does not have a 
rating for its senior unsecured long-term debt, then the rating then assigned to such 
entity as an issuer rating by Moody’s or as an issuer or corporate credit rating by 
S&P or another rating by any other rating agency agreed by the Parties as set forth 
in the Cover Sheet.  In the event that the Party or its Guarantor has multiple ratings, 
the lower rating shall prevail.” 

 
The following defined term is added as Section 1.26A: 
 

“1.26A “Joint Powers Agreement” means the “Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 
Relating to and Creating Peninsula Clean Power Authority of San Mateo County”, 
as amended, providing for the formation of Party B, as such agreement may be 
further amended, amended and restated or acceded to.” 

 
Section 1.27 is revised by (A) deleting the word “transferable” in the first line and replacing 
it with “non-transferable”, (B) adding the phrase “, a Canadian commercial bank” in the 
second line immediately after the words “U.S. commercial bank”, (C) deleting the words 
“credit rating” in third line and replacing it with “long term debt rating or deposit rating”, 
and (D) adding the phrase “and at least $10 billion in total assets” in the third line 
immediately after the word “Moody’s”. 
 
The following defined term is added as Section 1.49A: 
 

“1.49A “Ratings Agency” means S&P, Moody’s or any other rating agency agreed 
by the Parties in writing.” 

 
Section 1.50 is revised to read as follows: 
 

“1.50 “Recording” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.” 
 
Section 1.52 is deleted in its entirety as replaced with the following:  
 

“1.52 “S&P” means S&P Global Market Intelligence, a division of S&P Global 
Inc., or its successor.” 

 
Article Two:  Transaction Terms and Conditions 
 
Section 2.1 is revised by deleting the word “A” in the first line thereof and replacing it with 
the following: “Subject to Section 2.3, a”. 
 
Section 2.2 is amended by deleting “(including any Confirmations accepted in accordance 
with Section 2.3)” from the second sentence and is further revised by adding the following 
to the end of the section: 
 

“Party A and Party B agree that from and after the Effective Date, all new 
transactions with respect to the purchase and sale of any Product shall be made or 
deemed to be made pursuant to this Master Agreement (unless otherwise 
specifically agreed in writing).” 

 
Section 2.3 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“2.3 Confirmation.  A Transaction shall be entered into only by a written 
confirmation in a form mutually agreeable to both Parties and signed by both 
Parties (“Confirmation”).  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Master 
Agreement, the Master Agreement and any and all Confirmations may not be 
amended or modified except by an instrument in writing signed by both of the 



 

7 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

Parties”. 
 
Section 2.4 is amended by deleting the words “either orally or” in the seventh line thereof. 
 
Section 2.5 is revised by deleting the last two sentences thereof in their entirety and by 
adding the following sentence at the end of the remaining text: “In the event of a dispute 
between the Parties, any Party with a Recording of a telephone conversation(s) between the 
Parties relevant to the dispute shall, upon the request of the other Party, provide a copy of 
such Recording to the other Party which shall be held in accordance with this Section by 
such Party.” 
 
Article Three:  Obligations and Deliveries 
 
Section 3.2 is revised to add the following to the end of the section:  “From time to time the 
Parties may agree to bookout Transactions until further notice.  Bookouts are undertaken as 
a scheduling convenience and do not modify the terms of any Transaction.” 
 
Article Five:  Events of Default; Remedies 
 
Section 5.1(g) is revised (A) by adding “(after giving effect to any applicable notice 
requirement or grace period)” in the second line after the word “continuation”, (B) by 
adding “required to be made under one or more agreements for such Party or any other party 
specified in the Cover Sheet,” in the eleventh line before the word “individually”, and (C) 
by adding the following phrase at the end of the section “provided, an Event of Default shall 
not occur under this Section 5.1(g) if, as demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of the 
other Party, the Event of Default or the failure to pay is the result of a failure to pay caused 
by an error or omission of an administrative or operational nature, funds were available to 
such Party to enable it to make the relevant payment when due, and such relevant payment 
is made within three (3) Business Days following receipt of written notice from the party to 
whom the payment is owed.”. 
 
Section 5.1(h)(ii) is revised to add the phrase “or any other agreement between Party A or its 
Affiliate and Party B or its Affiliates,” after the word “Agreement”. 
 
Section 5.1(h)(v) is revised by adding the phrase “made in connection with this Agreement” 
after “any guaranty”. 

The “.” at the end of subparagraph (v) of Section 5.1(h) is replaced with “;” and the 
following two paragraphs are added to the end of Section 5.1: 
 

“(i) a Letter of Credit Failure that is not cured within three (3) Business Days after 
the occurrence thereof; or 
 
(j) a default, event of default, termination event, breach or any other similar event 

(howsoever expressed) that has not been remedied within the applicable grace 
period under any other agreement or instrument (including without limitation 
commodity or financial derivative agreements or transactions) between a Party 
or its Affiliate and the other Party or its Affiliate, that results in the other party 
being entitled under the terms of such other agreement to terminate and 
liquidate transactions and arrive at a net settlement payment thereunder by 
invoking a process similar in substance to the process described in Sections 
5.2, 5.3 and 5.6 regardless of the defined terms used to describe the same.” 

 
Section 5.2 is revised by reversing the placement of “(i)” and “to”. 
 
Clause (b) of Section 5.3 is revised so that the phrase “plus, at the option of the Non-
Defaulting Party, any cash then available to the Defaulting Party pursuant to Article Eight,” 



 

8 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

is inserted after the first occurrence of the words “Non-Defaulting Party”. 

Section 5.3 is amended by adding the following sentence at the end of the section:   

“Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, no Termination Payment 
shall be due or payable to the Defaulting Party.” 

The following is added as a new Section 5.8: 
 

“5.8  Letter of Credit Failure.  For the purposes of this Article Five, “Letter of 
Credit Failure” shall mean, with respect to a Party that has provided a Letter of 
Credit as Performance Assurance: 
 
(a) a failure to renew or substitute a Letter of Credit by no later than fifteen 

Business Days prior to any expiry or termination thereof; 
 
(b) the issuer of such Letter of Credit fails to maintain a Credit Rating of at 

least “A-” by S&P or at least “A3” by Moody’s and fails to maintain at 
least $10 billion in total assets; 

 
(c) the issuer of the Letter of Credit fails to comply with or perform its 

obligations under such Letter of Credit if such failure continues after the 
lapse of any applicable grace period; 

 
(d) the issuer of such Letter of Credit disaffirms, disclaims, repudiates or 

rejects, in whole or in part, or challenges the validity of, such Letter of 
Credit; 

 
(e) such Letter of Credit shall (other than in accordance with its terms) expire 

or terminate or fail or cease to be in full force and effect for purposes of 
this Agreement at any time during the term of the Agreement or any 
outstanding Transaction; or 

 
(f) any event analogous to an event specified in Subsection 5.1(d) or (f) of this 

Agreement occurs with respect to the issuer of such Letter of Credit. 
 
However, no Letter of Credit Failure will occur with respect to a Letter of Credit 
after the time such Letter of Credit is required to be cancelled or returned in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.” 

 
 Article Six:  Payment and Netting 

 
Section 6.4 is revised by adding the following sentence to the end of the section: 

“In the event the Parties are transacting under additional agreements, all 
transactions completed in the same month shall be netted against each other using 
the procedure described above.” 

Article Eight:  Credit and Collateral Requirements 
 
Section 8.1(a) is revised so that the figures “120” and “60” in each of Options (A) and (B) 
are replaced with the figures “140” and “90” respectively.   
  

 
 
 
 

   



 

9 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

 
Section 8.2(a) is revised so that the figures “120” and “60” in each of Options (A) and (B) 
are replaced with the figures “140” and “90” respectively.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Article Ten:  Miscellaneous 
 
Section 10.2(iii) is revised by inserting the text “(including, with respect to Party B, the Joint 
Powers Agreement)” immediately after the words “governing documents”. 
 
Section 10.11 is revised to read as follows: 
 

“10.11  Confidentiality.  If the Parties have elected on the Cover Sheet to make this 
Section 10.11 applicable to this Master Agreement, neither Party shall disclose (i) 
the terms or conditions of a Transaction or any other information exchanged 
relating to a Transaction or potential Transaction, or (ii) the completed Cover Sheet 
to this Master Agreement (collectively, “Confidential Information”), to a third 
party (other than the Party’s employees, lenders, counsel, accountants or advisors 
who have a need to know such information and have agreed to keep such terms 
confidential) except (a) in order to comply with any applicable law, regulation, or 



 

10 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

any exchange, control area or independent system operator rule or in connection 
with any court or regulatory proceeding, or (b) to the extent necessary to provide 
commercial terms of a Transaction, except the details pertaining to Seller or Buyer 
or either Party’s name, to a third party for the sole purpose of calculating a 
published index; provided, however, each Party shall, to the extent practicable, use 
reasonable efforts to prevent or limit the disclosure.  The Parties shall be entitled to 
all remedies available at law or in equity to enforce, or seek relief in connection 
with, this confidentiality obligation.  This Section 10.11 is in addition to, and not in 
substitution for, any other written assurances of non-disclosure between and 
executed by the Parties. 
 
Party A acknowledges that Party B is a public agency subject to the requirements 
of the California Public Records Act (Cal. Gov. Code section 6250 et seq.).  Party 
B acknowledges that Party A may submit information to Party B that Party A 
considers confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information pursuant the 
Uniform Trade Secrets Act (Cal. Civ. Code section 3426 et seq.), or otherwise 
protected from disclosure pursuant to an exemption to the California Public 
Records Act (Government Code sections 6254 and 6255).  Party B acknowledges 
that Party A is not subject to the requirements of the California Public Records Act 
(Cal. Gov. Code section 6250 et seq.).  Party A acknowledges that Party B may 
submit to Party A information that Party B considers confidential or proprietary or 
protected from disclosure pursuant to exemptions to the California Public Records 
Act (Government Code sections 6254 and 6255).  Upon request or demand of any 
third person or entity not a party to this Agreement (“Requestor”) for production, 
inspection and/or copying of Confidential Information (“Requested Confidential 
Information”), the receiving Party as soon as practical shall notify the disclosing 
Party in writing that such request has been made.  The disclosing Party shall be 
solely responsible for taking whatever legal steps are necessary to prevent release 
of the Requested Confidential Information to the Requestor by the receiving Party.  
If the disclosing Party takes no such action, after receiving the foregoing notice 
from the receiving Party, the receiving Party shall be permitted to comply with the 
Requestor’s demand and is not required to defend against it.  If the disclosing Party 
does take such action, the receiving Party shall provide timely and reasonable 
cooperation to the disclosing Party if requested by the disclosing Party, for which 
the disclosing Party will be responsible for any agreed reasonable expenses 
incurred by the receiving Party in providing such cooperation.” 

 
The following is added as Section 10.12: 

“10.12  Arbitration. 

(a) Any claim, counterclaim, demand, cause of action, dispute or controversy 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or in respect of any legal 
relationship associated therewith or derived there from or relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, whether contractual in nature or not, 
shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration administered 
pursuant to the International Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (or such other rules of arbitration as the Parties may agree).  
The number of arbitrators shall be three, and each Party shall choose one 
arbitrator and the two arbitrators shall choose the third arbitrator, who shall 
serve as chair.  The place of arbitration shall be San Francisco, California.  
The language of the arbitration shall be English.  It is agreed that the 
arbitrators shall have no jurisdiction or authority to award treble, 
exemplary or punitive damages of any type under any circumstances 
whether or not such damages may be available under any applicable law, 
and each of the Parties hereby waives its rights, if any, to recover any such 
damages.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Parties shall maintain 
in confidence the fact that an arbitration has been commenced, all 



 

11 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

documents and information exchanged during the course of the arbitration 
proceeding, and the arbitrators’ award, provided that each of the Parties 
shall be entitled to disclose such matters to its own officers, directors and 
employees, its professional advisors and other representatives as necessary 
for the purposes of conducting the arbitration, and may make such 
disclosures in the course of legal proceedings as may be required to pursue 
any legal right arising out of or in connection with the arbitration. 

 
(b) If any applicable law or statute authorizes any form of court proceeding in 

any of the courts of the United States that in any way arises out of or is 
related to an arbitration conducted pursuant to this Agreement (“Related 
Proceedings”), then, to the extent that any such matter is in whole or in 
part eligible for resolution by a United States District Court, whether or not 
the dispute may in whole or in part also be eligible for resolution in a state 
court, each party irrevocably: 

 
(i) submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District 

Court located in the City of Portland, Oregon for the purposes of 
such Related Proceedings; and 

 
(ii) waives any objection which it may have at any time to the laying of 

venue of any Related Proceedings brought in any such court, waives 
any claim that such Related Proceedings have been brought in an 
inconvenient forum, and further waives the right to object, with 
respect to such Related Proceedings, that such court does not have 
any jurisdiction over such party. 

 
Nothing in this Agreement precludes either Party from bringing a 
proceeding in any jurisdiction to enforce an arbitration award or any 
judgment enforcing an arbitration award, nor will the bringing of such 
proceedings in any one or more jurisdictions preclude the bringing of 
enforcement proceedings in any other jurisdiction. In connection with any 
court proceedings, each Party waives its respective right to any jury trial.” 

 
The following is added as Section 10.13: 

“10.13  Waiver.  FERC Standard of Review.    
 

(A)    Absent the agreement of all parties to the proposed change, the 
standard of review for changes to any provision of this Agreement 
(including all Power Transactions and/or Confirmations) specifying the 
rate(s) or other material economic terms and conditions agreed to by the 
parties herein, whether proposed by a party, a non-party or FERC acting 
sua sponte, shall solely be the “public interest” standard of review set 
forth in United Gas Pipe Line Co. v. Mobile Gas Service Corp., 350 U.S. 
332 (1956) and Federal Power Commission v. Sierra Pacific Power Co., 
350 U.S. 348 (1956) and clarified by Morgan Stanley Capital Group, Inc. 
v. Public Util. Dist. No. 1 of Snohomish 554 U.S. 527 (2008) and NRG 
Power Marketing LLC v. Maine Public Utility Commission, 558 U.S. 165 
(2010) (the “Mobile-Sierra” doctrine). 

 
(B)    The parties, for themselves and their successors and assigns, (y) 
agree that “public interest” standard of review shall apply to any proposed 
changes in any other documents, instruments or other agreements 
executed or entered into by the parties in connection with this Agreement 
and (z) hereby expressly and irrevocably waive any rights they can or may 
have to the application of any other standard of review, including the “just 
and reasonable” standard of review, provided that this standard of review 



 

12 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

and the other provisions of this Section 10.13 shall only apply to 
proceedings before the FERC or appeals thereof. 

 
(C)    In addition, and notwithstanding the foregoing clauses (A) and (B), 
to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, each party, for itself and 
its successors and assigns, hereby expressly and irrevocably waives any 
rights it can or may have, now or in the future, whether under Sections 
205 and/or 206 of the Federal Power Act or otherwise, to seek to obtain 
from FERC by any means, directly or indirectly (through complaint, 
investigation or otherwise), and each hereby covenants and agrees not at 
any time to seek to so obtain, an order from FERC changing any provision 
of this Agreement (including any applicable Transactions and/or 
Confirmations) specifying the rate(s) or other material economic terms 
and conditions agreed to by the parties, it being the express intent of the 
parties that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, neither party 
shall unilaterally seek to obtain from FERC any relief changing the rate(s) 
and/or other material economic terms and conditions of their 
agreement(s), as set forth in this Agreement and in any  Transactions or 
Confirmations, notwithstanding any subsequent changes in applicable law 
or market conditions that may occur.  In the event it were to be determined 
that applicable law precludes the parties from waiving their rights to seek 
changes from FERC to their market-based power sales contracts 
(including entering into covenants not to do so) then this Section 10.13 
shall not apply, provided that, consistent with this Section 10.13 neither 
party shall seek any such changes except under the “public interest” 
standard of review and otherwise as set forth in clauses (A) and (B) above. 

  
The following is added as Section 10.14:  

“10.14  Index Transactions. If the Contract Price for a Transaction is determined by 
reference to a Price Source, then: 
 
(a) Market Disruption. If a Market Disruption Event occurs on any one or 

more days during a Determination Period (each day, a “Disrupted Day”), 
then: 

 
(i) The fallback Floating Price, if any, specified by the Parties in the 

relevant Confirmation shall be the Floating Price for each Disrupted 
Day.   

(ii) If the Parties have not specified a fallback Floating Price, then the 
Parties will endeavor, in good faith and using commercially 
reasonable efforts, to agree on a substitute Floating Price, taking 
into consideration, without limitation, guidance, protocols or other 
recommendations or conventions issued or employed by trade 
organizations or industry groups in response to the Market 
Disruption Event and other prices published by the Price Source or 
alternative price sources with respect to the Delivery Point or 
comparable Delivery Points that may permit the Parties to derive 
the Floating Price based on historical differentials.   

(iii) If the Price Source retrospectively issues a Floating Price in respect 
of a Disrupted Day (a “Delayed Floating Price”) before the parties 
agree on a substitute Floating Price for such day, then the Delayed 
Floating Price shall be the Floating Price for such Disrupted Day.  
If a Delayed Price is issued by the Price Source in respect of a 
Disrupted Day after the Parties agree on a substitute Floating Price 



 

13 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

for such day, the substitute Floating Price agreed upon by the 
Parties will remain the Floating Price without adjustment unless the 
Parties expressly agree otherwise. 

(iv) If the Parties cannot agree on a substitute Floating Price and the 
Price Source does not retrospectively publish or announce a 
Floating Price, in each case, on or before the fifth Business Day 
following the first Trading Day on which the Market Disruption 
Event first occurred or existed, then the Floating Price for each 
Disrupted Day shall be determined by taking the arithmetic mean of 
quotations requested from four leading dealers in the relevant 
market that are unaffiliated with either Party and mutually agreed 
upon by the Parties (“Specified Dealers”), without regard to the 
quotations with the highest and lowest values, subject to the 
following qualifications:   

A. If exactly three quotations are obtained, the Floating Price for 
each such Disrupted Day will be the quotation that remains 
after disregarding the quotations having the highest and lowest 
values. 

B. If fewer than three quotations are obtained, the Floating Price 
for each such Disrupted Day will be the average of the 
quotations obtained.  

C. If the Parties cannot agree upon four Specified Dealers, then 
each of the Parties will, acting in good faith and in a 
commercially reasonable manner, select up to two Specified 
Dealers separately, and those selected dealers shall be the 
Specified Dealers.   

(v) Unless otherwise agreed, if at any time the Parties agree on a 
substitute Floating Price for any Disrupted Day, then such 
substitute Floating Price shall be the Floating Price for such 
Disrupted Day, notwithstanding the subsequent publication or 
announcement of a Delayed Floating Price by the relevant Price 
Source or any quotations obtained from Specified Dealers. 

(b) Definitions.  For the purposes of this Section 10.14, the following terms 
shall have the following meanings: 

(i) “Determination Period” means each calendar month a part or all of 
which is within the Delivery Period of a Transaction. 

(ii) “Exchange” means, in respect of a Transaction, the exchange or 
principal trading market specified as applicable to the relevant 
Transaction. 

(iii) “Floating Price” means a Contract Price specified in a Transaction 
that is based upon a Price Source. 

(iv) “Market Disruption Event” means, with respect to any Price Source, 
any of the following events:  

A. the failure of the Price Source to announce, publish or make 
available the specified Floating Price or information necessary 



 

14 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

for determining the Floating Price for a particular day; 

B. the failure of trading to commence on a particular day or the 
permanent discontinuation or material suspension of trading in 
the relevant options contract or commodity on the Exchange, 
RTO or in the market specified for determining a Floating 
Price; 

C. the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of 
the Price Source;  

D. the temporary or permanent closing of any Exchange or RTO 
specified for determining a Floating Price; or  

E. a material change in the formula for or the method of 
determining the Floating Price by the Price Source or a 
material change in the composition of the Product. 

(v) “Price Source” means, in respect of a Transaction, a publication or 
such other origin of reference, including an Exchange or RTO, 
containing or reporting or making generally available to market 
participants (including by electronic means) a price, or prices or 
information from which a price is determined, as specified in the 
relevant Transaction. 

(vi) “RTO” means any regional transmission operator or independent 
system operator. 

(vii) “RTO Transaction” means a Transaction in which the Price Source 
is an RTO. 

(viii) “Trading Day” means a day in respect of which the relevant Price 
Source ordinarily would announce, publish or make available the 
Floating Price. 

(c) Corrections to Published Prices.  If the Floating Price published, 
announced or made available on a given day and used or to be used to 
determine a relevant price is subsequently corrected by the relevant Price 
Source (i) within 30 days of the original publication, announcement or 
availability, or (ii) in the case of RTO Transactions only, within such 
longer time period as is consistent with the RTO’s procedures and 
guidelines, then either Party may notify the other Party of that correction 
and the amount (if any) that is payable as a result of that correction.  If, not 
later than thirty (30) days after publication or announcement of that 
correction, a Party gives notice that an amount is so payable, the Party that 
originally either received or retained such amount will, not later than three 
(3) Business Days after such notice is effective, pay, subject to any 
applicable conditions precedent, to the other Party that amount, together 
with interest at the Interest Rate for the period from and including the day 
on which payment originally was (or was not) made to but excluding the 
day of payment of the refund or payment resulting from that correction.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, corrections shall not be made to any 
Floating Prices agreed upon by the Parties or determined based on 
quotations from Specified Dealers pursuant to paragraph (a) above unless 
the Parties expressly agree otherwise. 

 
(d) Rounding. When calculating a Floating Price, all numbers shall be 



 

15 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

rounded to four (4) decimal places. If the fifth (5th) decimal number is five 
(5) or greater, then the fourth (4th) decimal number shall be increased by 
one (1), and if the fifth (5th) decimal number is less than five (5), then the 
fourth (4th) decimal number shall remain unchanged.” 

 
The following is added as Section 10.15: 
 

“10.15 Counterparts / Electronic Delivery. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which is an original, and 
all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Delivery of an executed 
signature page of this Agreement and any Confirmation by facsimile or electronic 
mail transmission (in portable document format (PDF)) shall be as effective as 
delivery of a manually executed signature page.” 

 
The following is added as Section 10.16: 
 

“10.16 Joint Powers Authority. 
 
Party A hereby acknowledges and agrees that Party B is organized as a Joint 
Powers Authority in accordance with the Joint Powers Act of the State of California 
(Government Code Section 6500 et seq.) pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement and 
is a public entity separate from its members.  Party B shall solely be responsible for 
all debts, obligations and liabilities accruing and arising out of this Agreement and 
Seller agrees that it shall have no rights and shall not make any claim, take any 
actions or assert any remedies against any of Party B’s members in connection with 
this Agreement.” 

 
Schedule M: Governmental Entity or Public Power System 
 
Section A of Schedule M is hereby amended by deleting the defined term “Act” and 
replacing it with the following: 
 

“Act” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of California (Government Code 
Section 6500 et seq.).” 

 
Section D of Schedule M is hereby amended by deleting paragraph (ii) of Section 3.4 and 
replacing it with the following: 
 

“(ii) an opinion of counsel for Party B, in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to Party A, regarding the validity, binding effect and enforceability of 
this Master Agreement against Party B in respect of the Act and all other relevant 
constitutional organic or other governing documents and applicable law.” 

 
Section E of Schedule M is hereby amended by inserting the text “Governmental Entity or” 
immediately after the word “cover” in the second sentence of Section 3.6. 
 
Section G of Schedule M is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“G. The Parties agree to add the following sentence at the end of Section 10.6 – 
Governing Law: 
 
“NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IN RESPECT OF THE 
APPLICABILITY OF THE ACT AS HEREIN PROVIDED, THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA SHALL APPLY.”” 

 
Schedule P:  Products and Related Definitions 
 



 

16 
Version 2.1 (modified 4/25/00) 

©COPYRIGHT 2000 by the Edison Electric Institute and National Energy Marketers Association 

The following definition and provision are added to Schedule P: 
 
1.  “CAISO Energy” means with respect to any Transaction, a Product under which the 
Seller shall sell and the Buyer shall purchase a quantity of energy equal to the hourly 
quantity without Ancillary Services (as defined in the Tariff) that is or will be scheduled as a 
schedule coordinator to schedule coordinator transaction pursuant to the applicable tariff and 
protocol provisions of the California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”) (as amended 
from time to time, the “Tariff”) for which the only excuse for failure to deliver or receive is 
an “Uncontrollable Force” (as defined in the Tariff). A CAISO “Schedule Adjustment” 
(defined as a schedule change implemented by the CAISO that is neither caused by, or 
within the control of, either Party) shall not constitute an Uncontrollable Force (as defined in 
the Tariff). 
 
2.  Other Products and Service Levels:  In addition to the Products set out in Schedule P, the 
Parties may agree to use a product or service level defined by a different agreement (i.e., the 
Tariff, the WSPP Agreement, etc.) for a particular Transaction under this Master 
Agreement.  If so, then the Transaction shall be subject to all the terms of this Master 
Agreement, except that (1) the product or service level definition, (2) force majeure, 
uncontrollable force definitions or other excuses for performance, (3) applicable regional 
reliability requirements and guidelines, and (4) other terms and conditions as mutually 
agreed in writing, shall have the meaning given to them in the different agreement or in the 
applicable Confirmation. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Master Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first 
above written. 

POWEREX CORP.*  PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, 
  a California joint powers authority 
 

By:   By:   

Name:   Name:   

Title:   Title:   

*Powerex Corp., doing business in California as 
Powerex Energy Corp. 
 
DISCLAIMER:  This Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement was prepared by a committee of 
representatives of Edison Electric Institute (“EEI”) and National Energy Marketers Association 
(“NEM”) member companies to facilitate orderly trading in and development of wholesale power 
markets.  Neither EEI nor NEM nor any member company nor any of their agents, representatives 
or attorneys shall be responsible for its use, or any damages resulting therefrom.  By providing this 
Agreement EEI and NEM do not offer legal advice and all users are urged to consult their own 
legal counsel to ensure that their commercial objectives will be achieved and their legal interests are 
adequately protected. 



 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Powerex Corp. * and Peninsula Clean Energy Authority 
Powerex Deal No. _________________  

 
 

This document (“Confirmation” or “Agreement”) confirms the agreement reached on the 
Effective Date between Powerex Corp.* (“Powerex” or “Seller”) and Peninsula Clean Energy 
Authority, a California joint powers authority (“PCEA” or “Buyer”) regarding the sale and 
purchase of the Product in accordance with the EEI Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement 
dated as of May 18, 2017, together with any and all exhibits, schedules or supplements thereto or 
incorporated therein by reference, each in force and effect from time to time between the Parties, 
(collectively, the “Master Agreement”) and as amended and supplemented by this Confirmation 
under the following terms and conditions.  Consistent with Section 2.2 of the Master Agreement, 
this Confirmation, together with all other transactions, confirmations and the Master Agreement, 
form a single integrated agreement between the Parties and are not separate contracts. 
 
Seller:   Powerex 
    
Buyer:   PCEA  
 
Trade Date:  May 18, 2017 
 
Transaction: This Transaction is for Buyer to procure Carbon Free Energy, all in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Confirmation. 
 
Product: Carbon Free Energy, being energy delivered from a Carbon Free Source 

and scheduled into the CAISO Balancing Authority or onto the CAISO 
Controlled Grid, in quantities as provided for under “Delivery Term and 
Contract Quantity” Section of this Confirmation. 
 
The Parties recognize that a schedule of energy into the California 
Independent System Operator (“CAISO”) balancing authority (“CAISO 
Balancing Authority”) or onto the CAISO Controlled Grid is a delivery 
to the CAISO and not directly to the Buyer. Scheduling energy into the 
CAISO Balancing Authority or onto the CAISO Controlled Grid shall 
constitute delivery of Carbon Free Energy provided such energy was 
delivered from a Carbon Free Source. 

 
Contract Price: In this Confirmation, 

“CAISO Credit” means the Energy Price paid by the CAISO for the 
 

  

 
 



2 
 

 

 
 

 

Payment: Invoicing and payment for the Carbon Free Energy delivered to Buyer 
shall be in accordance with Article 6 of the Master Agreement and Buyer 
shall pay such invoices in accordance with the Master Agreement and this 
Confirmation.  Seller’s invoices prepared in accordance with Article 6 of 
the Master Agreement may be delivered by email from Seller to Buyer.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

Change in Law: 
 

If due to (i) any action by a Governmental Authority, or (ii) any change in 
Applicable Law ((i) and (ii), collectively, a “Change in Law”), occurring 
after the Trade Date that results in material change(s) to Buyer's or Seller's 
obligations with regard to the Product(s) sold under this Agreement or that 
has the effect of changing the transfer and sale procedure set forth in this 
Confirmation so that the implementation of this Confirmation becomes 
impossible or impracticable, the Parties shall work in good faith to try and 
revise this Confirmation so that the Parties can perform their obligations 
regarding the purchase and sale of Product(s) sold hereunder in order to 
maintain the original intent of the Parties under this Confirmation. In the 
event the Parties cannot reach agreement on any such amendments to this 
Confirmation within 60 days following the Change in Law, to the extent 
practicable and lawful, Seller shall perform its obligations hereunder with 
regard to any Product hereunder in accordance with the Applicable Law 
immediately prior to the Change in Law; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, Seller 
shall not be obligated under this Change in Law provision to perform any 
obligation hereunder to the extent that doing so would cause Seller to be 
materially adversely affected. 

 
Delivery Term and Contract Quantity: 
 

The Delivery Term for the Product is (i) July 1, 2017 through December 
31, 2017, and (ii) January 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 inclusive (each a 
“Delivery Period” and collectively the “Delivery Term”). 
 
During the Delivery Term, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the Contract 
Quantity of Carbon Free Energy allocated to each Delivery Period as 
specified in the table below (“Contract Quantity”): 
 
 



3 
 

Product Delivery Period Contract Quantity 
(MWh) 

Carbon Free Energy July 1, 2017 
through 

December 31, 
2017 

 

Carbon Free Energy  January 1, 2018 
through June 30, 

2018 

 

 
For greater certainty, there shall be no minimum or maximum obligation 
to deliver Carbon Free Energy in any hour during the Delivery Term. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Carbon Free Energy shall be scheduled in accordance with “Scheduling” 
below. 

 
Delivery Point: Out-of-State Carbon Free Sources: Seller may deliver Carbon Free Energy 

to any Scheduling Point (as defined in the CAISO Tariff) including but not 
limited to the SYLMARDC_2_N501 and MALIN_5_N101 Scheduling 
Points. 

 
In-State Carbon Free Sources: Seller shall deliver Carbon Free Energy 
from an in-state Carbon Free Source to the Delivery Point as specified in 
Schedule “A”. 
 

Title: Title to the Carbon Free Energy shall be deemed to pass from Seller to 
Buyer at the Delivery Point. 

 

Scheduling: Seller will perform or cause to be performed all scheduling and tagging 
requirements for Carbon Free Energy. Energy deliveries shall be 
scheduled pursuant to WECC and CAISO requirements to the Delivery 
Point. 

Scheduling: Seller shall schedule or cause to be scheduled, at its sole 
discretion, Carbon Free Energy from Carbon Free Sources into the CAISO 
Balancing Authority or onto the CAISO Controlled Grid on a day-ahead, 
hour-ahead, sub-hourly and/or real-time basis.   Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, Seller may schedule the Carbon Free Energy 
during any or all HLH and LLH hours during the Delivery Term until the 
total Contract Quantity is delivered. 

All Carbon Free Energy shall be scheduled in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Utility Practice.  



4 
Tagging – Out-of-State Carbon Free Sources:  The CARB ID(s) of the 
Carbon Free Source shall be entered as the “Value” in the 
Misc(Token/Value) field of the e-tag. Each e-Tag shall show the CAISO 
Balancing Authority as the last CA (Control Area) under ‘Physical Path’; 
Buyer shall be designated by inserting “Peninsula Clean Energy” in the 
Comment section on each NERC e-Tag. 
 
For greater certainty, no e-Tags shall be generated for Carbon Free Energy 
delivered from an in-state Carbon Free Source. 

 
Any scheduling provisions may be altered by mutual agreement of the 
Parties. 

 
Seller scheduling contacts:  

 
    Phone   Fax 

     
    

   
    

 
  

 
Generation Resources: 

Seller’s list of generation resources from which it will supply Carbon Free 
Energy to Buyer will be specified in Schedule A in accordance with this 
provision.  A completed Schedule A will be provided to Buyer at least 5 
Business Days prior to the initial delivery of Carbon Free Energy (which 
requirement may be satisfied if a completed Schedule A is attached hereto 
on the Trade Date) and, thereafter, Seller may update this generation 
resources list (including to add additional generation resources that qualify 
as Carbon Free Sources) from time to time by delivering a revised 
Schedule A to Buyer which shall thereupon replace the existing Schedule 
A.  In the event Seller delivers Carbon Free Energy from a Carbon Free 
Source not listed in Schedule A, such delivery shall still constitute 
delivery of Carbon Free Energy hereunder and Seller shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to update Schedule A as soon as is 
reasonably practicable after delivery to add the applicable generation 
resource(s). 

 
Definitions Applicable 
to this Transaction 

For the purposes of this Confirmation, the following terms used in this 
Confirmation shall have the following meanings: 
 
(a) “Applicable Law” means any statute, law, treaty, rule, tariff, 

regulation, ordinance, code, permit, enactment, injunction, order, 
writ, decision, authorization, judgment, decree or other legal or 
regulatory determination or restriction by a court or Governmental 
Authority of competent jurisdiction, or any binding interpretation 
of or guidance with respect to the foregoing, as any of them is 



5 
amended or supplemented from time to time, that apply to either or 
both of the Parties, the Generation Resource(s), or the terms of the 
Agreement. 

(b) “CAISO Controlled Grid” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO 
Tariff. 

(c) “CAISO Tariff” means the applicable tariff and protocol 
provisions of the CAISO (as amended from time to time). 

(d) “Cap and Trade Regulation” means the regulations entitled 
California Cap on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Market-Based 
Compliance Mechanisms set forth at Article 5 of Subchapter 10 of 
Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations. 

(e) “CARB” means the California Air Resources Board of the 
California Environmental Protection Agency.  

(f) “Carbon Free Source” means any energy source, except for 
nuclear-powered generation assets, that is located within the 
Western Energy Coordinating Council (“WECC”) area and that is 
considered by the State of California to have zero Greenhouse Gas 
emissions in accordance with the Mandatory Reporting Rule and 
the Cap and Trade Regulation.  Carbon Free Source does not 
include any Category 3 Renewables, “asset controlling supplier” 
(ACS) resources (as such term is used in the Mandatory Reporting 
Rule) or any energy source with an e-tag with a source point 
associated with a nuclear,  or coal-fired generating facility. 

(g) “Category 3 Renewable” means renewable energy credits that 
satisfy the requirements of Section 399.16(b)(3) of the California 
Public Utilities Code. 

(h) “Effective Date” means the date on which both Parties have 
executed and delivered this Confirmation. 

(i) “Generally Accepted Utility Practice” means a practice established 
by WECC or any successor regional reliability council, as such 
practice may be revised from time to time, or if no practice is so 
established, means a practice otherwise generally accepted in the 
WECC region. 

(j) “Governmental Authority” means any federal, provincial, state, 
local or municipal government, governmental department, 
commission, board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality, or any 
judicial, regulatory or administrative body, or any applicable 
transmission authority, having or asserting jurisdiction over a Party 
or this Transaction. 

(k) “HLH” means hours ending (“HE”) 0700-2200 PPT Mondays 
through Saturdays, excluding Holidays. 



6 
(l) “Holiday” means any day designated as a holiday by NERC. 

(m) “LLH” means Mondays through Saturdays HE 0100-0600 and HE 
2300-2400 PPT, and all day Sundays and Holidays. 

(n)  “Mandatory Reporting Rule” means the regulations entitled 
Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting set forth at 
Article 2 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

(o) “Pricing Node” or “PNode” has the meaning set forth in the 
CAISO Tariff.  

Special Conditions 

1. Events of Default; Remedies.  For purposes of this Transaction: 

(a) For the purposes of determining payments under Section 5.2 of the Master 
Agreement, with respect to this Transaction, the economic benefits or losses of 
the Non-Defaulting Party resulting from termination of this Transaction shall be 
based on energy delivered from a Carbon Free Source. 

(b) The remedies for failure to deliver the Product provided for in the Master 
Agreement as amended by this Confirmation are the sole and exclusive remedies 
and all other remedies are waived. 

2. Failure to Deliver/Receive.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Importer/Compliance Obligation.  For Carbon Free Energy imported from an out-of-state 
Carbon Free Source, Seller will be the electricity importer into California for purposes of 
the Cap and Trade Regulations. The Parties acknowledge that Seller will be responsible 
for satisfying the Compliance Obligation (as such term is defined in the Cap and Trade 
Regulations) under the Cap and Trade Regulations associated with any Carbon Free 
Energy that Seller schedules and delivers into the CAISO Balancing Authority and that 
they will work together such that Seller may claim that such Carbon Free Energy is from 
a “specified source” (as such term is defined in the Mandatory Reporting Rule) to 
mitigate such Compliance Obligation.  This provision is based on the Cap and Trade 
Regulations and Mandatory Reporting Rule as of the Trade Date of this Confirmation. In 
the event that the regulatory requirements for mitigating the Compliance Obligation 
change after the Trade Date, Buyer shall make commercially reasonable efforts to assist 
Seller in meeting such regulatory requirements. 



7 
4.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

This Agreement is being provided pursuant to and in accordance with the Master Agreement, 
and constitutes part of and is subject to the terms and provisions of the Master Agreement.  
Terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master 
Agreement. 
 
The Parties agree it is their intention that the Transaction provided for in this Agreement is not 
capable of being agreed to orally and shall only become binding on the Parties when this 
Agreement is executed by both Parties. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
Powerex Corp. *    Peninsula Clean Energy Authority, a 

California joint powers authority 
 
By:      By:      
 
Name:      Name:      
 
Title:      Title:      
 
Date:      Date:      
 
* Powerex Corp., doing business in California as Powerex Energy Corp. 
 
 
 
Contacts:  Powerex:     PCEA: 
 
 Anthony Des Lauriers    Jan Pepper  
 Tel:   (604) 891-6018   Tel: (415) 309-9206 
 Fax:   (604) 891-5056   Fax: (415) 363-4034 
 
 



SCHEDULE A 
 
 

Generation Resources  
 

 
Generation 
Resource 
Name 

NERC 
Source 

State / 
Province 

Technology CARB 
ID 

E-tag Misc. Value Emissions 
Factor (MT 
CO2e per 
MWh) 

Delivery 
Point  
(In-State 
Carbon Free 
Sources 
Only) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     

 
 

    
 

   

 
 

 

    
 

   

 
 

   

    
 

   

 



 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

Item No. 11 

 
DATE: May 18, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Renewable Supply (Powerex) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an EEI (Edison Electric Institute) 
Confirmation Agreement, and any necessary ancillary documents, for Purchase of PCC1 
Renewable Energy from Powerex.  Power Delivery Term: June 1, 2017 through 
December 31, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
PCE has purchased PCC1 Renewable Energy to meet its Phase 1 obligations to 
customers.  With the launch of Phase 2, PCE needs to purchase additional PCC1 
Renewable Energy to meet its obligations to customers. PCC1 renewable energy refers 
to bundled renewable energy, whereby the energy and renewable energy attributes are 
delivered together.  These resources consist of in-state renewable energy projects or 
out-of-state projects that deliver the renewable energy to the California Independent 
System Operator (CAISO) at the time the energy is produced.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
PCE, working with its consultant PEA, solicited bids to supply PCC1 Renewable Energy 
for its 2017 Phase 2 needs.   
 
Bids were received from six different suppliers to satisfy PCE’s PCC1 Renewable 
Energy needs for 2017.   Powerex submitted a competitive bid at a price and quantity 
that meets PCE’s needs. 
 



 
 

2 
 

PCE and Powerex have agreed to use the EEI Master Agreement for this purchase of 
PCC1 Renewable Energy.  The Board is being asked to authorize the CEO to execute 
an EEI Confirmation with Powerex, in a form approved by General Counsel, and any 
necessary ancillary documents.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Payments for the purchase of PCC1 Renewable Energy from Powerex for June 1, 2017 
through December 31, 2017 will not exceed $1,600,000. 
 
 

 
 

 
 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 

 *   *   *   *   *   *  

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO EXECUTE A CONFIRMATION AGREEMENT WITH POWEREX CORP. FOR 

PURCHASE OF PCC1 RENEWABLE ENERGY WITH TERMS CONSISTENT WITH 

THOSE PRESENTED, IN A FORM APPROVED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL AND 

FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 1, 2017 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017 IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,600,000 

______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLVED, by the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority of the County of San 

Mateo, State of California, that 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Peninsula Clean Energy” or 

“PCE”) was formed on February 29, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, as was true in 2016, PCE has ongoing commitments to purchase 

PCC1 Renewable Energy; and 

WHEREAS, in January 2017 PCE requested prices for PCC1 Renewable Energy 

from multiple energy suppliers to serve Phase 2 customers in 2017 and 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Powerex Corp. provided a competitively priced option for PCC1 

Renewable Energy for June 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017; and 



2 

 

WHEREAS, PCE has negotiated a Confirmation Agreement with Powerex Corp. 

for the necessary volumes, reference to which should be made for further particulars; 

and 

WHEREAS, both parties are agreeable to using the Edison Electric Institute 

(“EEI”) model master agreement for this purchase.  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to execute a Confirmation 

Agreement with Powerex Corp. for PCC1 Renewable Energy with terms consistent with 

those presented, in a form approved by the General Counsel and for a power delivery 

term covering June 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 in an amount not to exceed 

$1,600,000. 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 



 
  

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Powerex Corp. * and Peninsula Clean Energy Authority 
Powerex Deal No. __________________ 

 
 

This document (“Confirmation” or “Agreement”) confirms the agreement reached on the 
Effective Date between Powerex Corp.* (“Powerex” or “Seller”) and  Peninsula Clean Energy 
Authority, a California joint powers authority (“PCEA” or “Buyer”) regarding the sale and 
purchase of the Product in accordance with the EEI Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement 
dated as of May 18, 2017, together with any and all exhibits, schedules or supplements thereto or 
incorporated therein by reference, each in force and effect from time to time between the Parties 
(collectively, the “Master Agreement”) and as amended and supplemented by this Confirmation 
under the following terms and conditions.  Consistent with Section 2.2 of the Master Agreement, 
this Confirmation, together with all other transactions, confirmations and the Master Agreement, 
form a single integrated agreement between the Parties and are not separate contracts. 
 
Seller:   Powerex 
    
Buyer:   PCEA 
 
Trade Date:  May 18, 2017 
 
Transaction: This Transaction is for Buyer to procure Bundled Renewable Energy, all 

in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Confirmation. 
 
Generation Term: For the purposes of this Confirmation and the Bundled Renewable Energy 

to be delivered pursuant hereto, the generation term for Bundled 
Renewable Energy is June 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, inclusive. 

 
Product: “Bundled Renewable Energy”, which is comprised of energy generated 

by the Project(s) and the associated Green Attributes, including RECs. 
 
Delivery and Passage of Title: 
 

Delivery – Out-of-State Designated Facilities 
 
The Parties recognize that a schedule of energy by Seller into the 
California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”) balancing authority 
(“CAISO Balancing Authority”) by means of either Delivery Method 1 
(Category 1 Product) and/or Delivery Method 2 (Category 2 Product), as 
defined and described below, are deliveries to the CAISO and not directly 
to the Buyer. Scheduling energy in accordance with Delivery Method 1 
and/or Delivery Method 2 into the CAISO Balancing Authority shall 
constitute delivery of Bundled Renewable Energy to Buyer, provided the 
WREGIS Certificates evidencing the Green Attributes comprised in the 
Bundled Renewable Energy are delivered to Buyer as provided in this 
Confirmation.  



2 
 
Delivery – In-State Designated Facilities 
 
The Parties recognize that a schedule of energy by or on behalf of Seller 
onto the CAISO Controlled Grid by means of Delivery Method 1 
(Category 1 Product) is a delivery to the CAISO and not directly to the 
Buyer. Scheduling energy in accordance with Delivery Method 1 onto the 
CAISO Controlled Grid shall constitute delivery of Bundled Renewable 
Energy to Buyer, provided the WREGIS Certificates evidencing the Green 
Attributes comprised in the Bundled Renewable Energy are delivered to 
Buyer as provided in this Confirmation. 
 
Passage of Title 
 
Energy:  Title to the Energy shall pass at the Delivery Point.   
 
Green Attributes: Green Attributes (including any RECs) to be delivered 
to Buyer hereunder shall be represented by WREGIS Certificates.  Seller 
shall use WREGIS to transfer title to the Green Attributes to Buyer.  The 
transfer of WREGIS Certificates through WREGIS shall be deemed to 
transfer title to all of the Green Attributes associated with the Product. 
 
As between Buyer and Seller, Seller shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with the creation of the WREGIS Certificates and the transfer 
of such certificates to Buyer (including any costs and expenses for 
Qualified Reporting Entity (as defined in the WREGIS Operating Rules) 
services associated with the WREGIS Certificates created and transferred 
hereunder).  Buyer shall be responsible for the costs of establishing and 
maintaining its’ own WREGIS account.   
 

Delivery Method Election: 
 

Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree that Buyer has purchased 
Bundled Renewable Energy, and that the energy generated by a Project 
and allocated to this Transaction will not be sold back to that Designated 
Facility, is available to Buyer and is not otherwise committed to another 
party. The Green Attributes associated with the Bundled Renewable 
Energy have not been unbundled and transferred to another owner. 

The Parties intend that the Product as procured by Buyer and as delivered 
by Seller in accordance with Delivery Method 1 (the “Category 1 
Product”) will meet the Category 1 Eligibility Requirements in 
accordance with this Confirmation. 

The Parties intend that the Product as procured by Buyer and as delivered 
by Seller in accordance with Delivery Method 2 (the “Category 2 
Product”) will meet the Category 2 Eligibility Requirements in 
accordance with this Confirmation. 



3 
Bundled Renewable Energy 

Buyer elects to take receipt of the Energy associated with Buyer’s 
procurement of the Product as follows: 

 “Delivery Method 1” – (Category 1 Product) – Energy directly 
delivered from the Project on an hourly, sub-hourly or real-time basis to 
the Delivery Point without substituting electricity from another source 
(“Project Energy”), and/or  

 “Delivery Method 2” – (Category 2 Product) – Energy generated by a 
source other than the Project, delivered to the Delivery Point in 
substitution for, and in an amount matching the amount of, Project Energy 
(“Substitute Energy”). 

If both boxes are checked, Buyer is deemed to have selected a 
combination of Delivery Method 1 and Delivery Method 2 as detailed 
below. 

Substitute Energy shall be generated by a resource located outside of the 
metered boundaries of a California balancing authority and such Substitute 
Energy was not in the Buyer’s portfolio prior to the date of this 
Transaction.  

Substitute Energy will be scheduled into a California balancing authority 
within the same calendar year as the year in which the Project Energy was 
generated.   

Powerex will not deliver Substitute Energy from a Specified Source if 
such unit or facility is a nuclear-powered or coal-fired generating resource.  
Except as provided in the immediately preceding sentence, Powerex may 
procure and deliver Substitute Energy from any other source, including a 
Specified Source, an “unspecified source” (as such term is defined in the 
Mandatory Reporting Rule) or electricity procured in the open market. 

Delivery Method Quantity: 

Delivery Term 

The delivery term is June 1, 2017, through the date that all Green 
Attributes transacted under this Confirmation have been delivered from 
Seller to Buyer in accordance with this Confirmation, and in any case no 
later than April 30, 2018 (the “Delivery Term”). 

Quantity 

During the Delivery Term, Buyer shall procure  MWh of Bundled 
Renewable Energy from Seller to be delivered by Seller in accordance 
with the Delivery Method selected under the “Delivery Method Election” 
section above, being comprised of  MWh of Category 1 Product 
(“Category 1 Product Contract Quantity”) MWh of Category 2 
(“Category 2 Product Contract Quantity”). 



4 
Category 1 Product  

Generation Term Category 1 
Product 
Contract 
Quantity 
(MWh) 

June 1, 2017 through December 
31, 2017 

 

 

Category 2 Product 

 

 
Total Energy Deliveries (Category 1 Product and Category 2 Product) 
to Delivery Point 

Generation Term Total 
Contract 
Quantity 
(MWh) 

June 1, 2017 through December 
31, 2017  

 

 

Deliveries of Category 1 Product and Category 2 Product are further 
described in the “Scheduling and Tagging” section of this Confirmation. 
 
The Green Attributes will be delivered to Buyer on or before the 20th 
NERC Business Day of the month following applicable WREGIS 
timelines.   
 
Green Attributes will be transferred to the WREGIS account named 
“Peninsula Clean Energy”.  

The determination of the hourly quantity of Category 1 Product generated 
by an out-of-state Project and delivered to the Delivery Point shall be 
made after-the-fact and will be: the lesser of (i) the Projects’ hourly 
metered output, and (ii) the actual hourly quantity allocated by Seller to 
this Confirmation and delivered to the Buyer at the Delivery Point as 
determined by the NERC e-tags. 

In the event that the quantity of Category 1 Product delivered in any hour 
is less than the quantity of energy delivered to the Buyer at the Delivery 
Point pursuant to this Confirmation that Seller intended to be a delivery of 
Category 1 Product, the Buyer shall pay the Energy Price (less the CAISO 
Credit) for any such quantities, and any such quantities shall not count 

Generation Term Category 2 
Product 
Contract 
Quantity 
(MWh) 

- - 



5 
towards the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity to be delivered under 
this Confirmation. 

 
 

Contract Price:  In this Confirmation, 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

   

  
 
 

  
 
 



6 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Designated Facility: Bundled Renewable Energy procured under this Confirmation will be 

generated by and/or attributable to one or more of the facilities (each a 
“Designated Facility”) listed in Schedule “A”.  Each Designated Facility 
must be certified as an eligible renewable energy resource for the 
California RPS Program (or will be certified as an eligible renewable 
energy resource prior to delivery of Category 1 Product or Category 2 
Product generated by or attributed to such facility).  Seller must be 
contractually entitled to all or a portion of the bundled energy and 
associated Green Attributes generated by a Designated Facility during the 
Generation Term (or the portion thereof in respect of which bundled 
energy is generated by or attributed to such facility). Schedule “A” may be 
amended and updated by Seller in accordance with “Additional 
Designated Facilities” below.  

 
For the purposes of this Agreement, a facility will be deemed to be 
certified as an eligible renewable energy resource prior to delivery of a 
Category Product if (i) the facility is certified as an eligible renewable 
energy resource by the CEC and (ii) delivery of the Category Product 
occurs on or after the eligibility date issued by the CEC. 

Additional Designated Facilities – Applicable to Category 1 Product 
only: 
 
From time to time during the Generation Term, Seller may designate one 
or more additional renewable generation facilities  

 as a Designated Facility for the purposes of delivering Category 
1 Product under this Confirmation, provided that Seller shall designate 
such facility in advance of delivering any Green Attributes with associated 
delivery of energy from such facility and any such additional renewable 
generation facility will meet the eligibility requirements for a Designated 
Facility as provided above.  Seller may designate any such additional 
facility(s) by providing Buyer with an updated Schedule “A” that includes 
such additional facility(ies) listed as “Part B – Additional Designated 



7 
Facilities for Category 1 Product” of Schedule “A”, which shall thereupon 
replace the existing Schedule “A” to this Confirmation.  Any additional 
Designated Facility shall be considered to be a Designated Facility with 
respect to Category 1 Product deliveries for all purposes of this 
Confirmation.  

 
Eligibility Requirements:  

 
If, at any time, a Category Product does not meet the applicable Eligibility 
Requirements (a “Failing Category Product”), the provisions of Article 4 
of the Master Agreement shall apply (as modified by and subject to the 
limitations set forth in this Confirmation) and it shall not be an Event of 
Default for the purposes of the Master Agreement.  Provided that the 
Parties have complied with any obligations under Section 2 of this 
Confirmation, the Parties will have no obligation to schedule, deliver or 
purchase a Failing Category Product and no liability to each other for any 
failure to schedule, deliver or purchase a Failing Category Product except 
in the event and to the extent that there is a Seller Eligibility Failure, 
Buyer Eligibility Failure, Regulatory Determination or change in law as 
and to the extent provided in this Confirmation.  
 
Unless expressly provided in this Confirmation, nothing herein shall 
excuse either Party from its obligations hereunder as a result of, and 
neither Party shall be entitled to rely on, any Seller Eligibility Failure or 
Buyer Eligibility Failure.  Subject to the limitations set forth in this 
Confirmation, each Party will make commercially reasonable efforts to do, 
or cause or permit to be done, everything in its direct control which would 
or would reasonably be expected to cause each of the Eligibility 
Requirements, or elements or components thereof, applicable to the 
Category Products to be met or satisfied, and neither Party will do or omit 
to do, or cause or permit to be done, anything in its direct control which 
would or would reasonably be expected to cause any one or more of the 
Eligibility Requirements, or elements or components thereof, applicable to 
a Category Product not to be met or satisfied.  
 

Regulatory Determination/Change in Law: 
 
If one or both of the Category Products to be delivered under and in 
accordance with the terms of this Confirmation does not or will not meet 
or satisfy the applicable Eligibility Requirements as a result of (a) a 
change in law (as defined herein) or (b) a determination of a governmental 
or regulatory authority having authority or jurisdiction (and such 
determination is not a result of a Seller Eligibility Failure, Buyer 
Eligibility Failure, change in law or Force Majeure) (a “Regulatory 
Determination”), then, in each case, provided that the Parties have 
complied with any obligations under Section 2 (and, with respect to Seller 
in the event of a change in law to the extent applicable, Section 6) of this 
Confirmation and such efforts have been unsuccessful in causing the 
affected Category Product(s) to meet or satisfy the applicable Eligibility 
Requirements: 

 



8 
(a) if the change in law or Regulatory Determination occurs prior to 

delivery of any of the applicable Category Product(s) hereunder, 
the Parties will have no liability to each other for any failure to 
schedule, deliver or purchase the affected Category Product;  

(b) if the change in law or Regulatory Determination occurs after 
delivery of any of the applicable Category Product(s) hereunder, 
the Parties will have no liability to each other for any failure to 
schedule, deliver or purchase the affected Category Product that is 
not then delivered; and 

(c) either Party may, by written notice to the other, immediately 
terminate the Transaction, without penalty, termination payment or 
liability of either Party to the other except as provided in paragraph 
(b) above.   

Delivery Point: Out-of-State Designated Facilities: Seller may deliver Energy to any 
Scheduling Point or combination of Scheduling Points. 

 
In-State Designated Facilities: Seller shall deliver Project Energy from an 
in-state Designated Facility to the Delivery Point specified in Schedule 
“A”. 
 

Scheduling and Tagging: 
 

Scheduling 

Seller shall schedule or cause to be scheduled, at its sole discretion, 
Energy into the CAISO Balancing Authority or onto the CAISO 
Controlled Grid on a day-ahead, hour-ahead, sub-hourly and/or real-time 
basis.   Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Seller may 
schedule or cause to be scheduled the Energy during any and/or all Peak 
and Off-Peak hours. 

All Energy shall be scheduled in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Utility Practice.  

e-tagging – Out-of-State Designated Facilities 

Seller shall generate all e-tags required to schedule the Energy to and from 
the Delivery Point.  Seller shall match RECs with e-Tags before 
transferring the RECs to Buyer.  For greater certainty, no e-Tags will be 
generated for deliveries from in-state Projects and RECs generated by an 
in-state Project will therefore not be matched with e-Tags before 
transferring to Buyer. 

Each e-Tag shall show the CAISO Balancing Authority as the last CA 
(Control Area) under ‘Physical Path’ and Buyer shall be designated by 
inserting “Peninsula Clean Energy” in the Comment section on each 
NERC e-Tag. 



9 
Category 1 Product 

For Category 1 Product, each e-Tag shall (i) contain a single Designated 
Facility, from the Designated Facilities listed in Schedule “A”, identified 
as the source under ‘POR/ POD’ under the ‘Physical Path’ section of an e-
tag, and (ii) include the RPS ID for the Designated Facility in the 
Misc(Token/Value) field of the e-Tag where  “RPS_ID” is the Token and 
the RPS ID is the Value. 

For Category 1 Product only, the use of another source to provide real-
time ancillary services required to maintain an hourly import schedule into 
the CAISO Balancing Authority shall be permitted, but only the fraction 
of the schedule actually generated by or attributable to the Designated 
Facility shall qualify as Category 1 Product under this Confirmation. 

Category 2 Product 

For Category 2 Product, each e-Tag shall include one or more, up to a 
maximum of ten, of the RPS ID numbers for the Designated Facilities 
listed in Schedule “A” in the Misc(Token/Value) field of the e-Tag where  
“RPS_ID” is the Token and the RPS ID is the Value. 

Seller scheduling contacts:  
 

    Phone   Fax 
     

     
   

    
 
 
 
Importer for Cap and  
Trade Purposes: For any Energy imported into California, Seller will be the electricity 

importer into California for purposes of the Cap and Trade Regulations. 
The Parties acknowledge that Seller will be responsible for satisfying the 
Compliance Obligation under the Cap and Trade Regulations associated 
with the energy which Seller shall schedule into the CAISO Balancing 
Authority as part of the Product to be delivered under this Confirmation 
and that they will work together such that Seller may claim that any 
Project Energy which Seller has scheduled into the CAISO Balancing 
Authority is from a Specified Source and claim the RPS Adjustment with 
respect to Substitute Energy, in both cases to mitigate such Compliance 
Obligation. 

 
Definitions Applicable  
to this Transaction: For the purposes of this Confirmation, the following terms shall have the 

following meanings: 
 

(a) “Alternate Eligible Facility” means an alternate Eligible Facility. 



10 
(b) “Alternate Source” means an alternate source of supply of energy 

and associated Green Attributes generated by the same facility as a 
Designated Facility during the Generation Term and which Seller 
is entitled to pursuant to its purchase agreements for output from 
the facility. 

(c) “Buyer Eligibility Failure” means a failure of a Category Product 
to meet or satisfy the applicable Eligibility Requirements or any 
element or component thereof as a result of or if caused by any fact 
or circumstance within the control of Buyer, including a failure by 
Buyer to accept an applicable transfer on WREGIS, to provide 
information and data available to Buyer (including as provided by 
Seller) as may be required to verify the Green Attributes comprised 
in the Products or, for Category 2 Product, to retire or designate for 
retirement the RECs for the purposes of compliance with the 
California RPS Program. For greater certainty, Buyer Eligibility 
Failure shall only apply to the extent such failure is not caused by 
or attributable to a change in law, Regulatory Determination, Force 
Majeure or Seller Eligibility Failure and Buyer has complied with 
its obligations, if any, with respect thereto under this Confirmation. 

(d) “Buyer Shortfall” means that the quantity of Category 1 Product or 
Category 2 Product received or purchased by Buyer pursuant to 
this Confirmation is less than the Category 1 Product Contract 
Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, respectively, if 
such shortfall is caused by or attributable to: 

(i) the failure of the Buyer to receive or purchase the Category 
1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product 
Contract Quantity generated by and/or attributable to the 
Project(s) and delivered to Buyer pursuant to this 
Confirmation for any reason other than a Force Majeure; or  

(ii) a Buyer Eligibility Failure;  

and the amount of such shortfall is the difference between:  

(iii) the greater of:  

A. the actual quantity of  Category 1 Product or 
Category 2 Product generated by and/or attributable 
to the Project(s) up to the Category 1 Product 
Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract 
Quantity, respectively, and delivered to Buyer 
pursuant to this Confirmation, or  

B. the actual quantity of  Category 1 Product or 
Category 2 Product generated by and/or attributable 
to the Project(s) up to the Category 1 Product 
Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract 
Quantity, respectively, that would have been 
delivered to Buyer pursuant to this Confirmation if 



11 
the Buyer had met or satisfied the applicable 
Eligibility Requirements 

in each case, for greater certainty, taking into 
account any Seller Shortfall; and  

(iv) the amount of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product 
received or purchased by Buyer pursuant to this 
Confirmation.   

(e) “CAISO Controlled Grid” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO 
Tariff. 

(f) “CAISO Tariff” means the applicable tariff and protocol 
provisions of the CAISO (as amended from time to time). 

(g) “California RPS Program” or “California Renewables Portfolio 
Standard” means the “California Renewables Portfolio Standard” 
program jointly administered by the CEC, the CPUC and the 
California Air Resources Board, as such program exists as of the 
Trade Date, including without limitation all applicable eligibility 
criteria and requirements thereof in force and effect as of the Trade 
Date. 

(h) “Cap and Trade Regulations” means the regulations entitled 
California Cap on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Market-Based 
Compliance Mechanisms set forth at Article 5 of Subchapter 10 of 
Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations. 

(i) “Category 1 Product Eligibility Requirements” means, with respect 
to the Category 1 Product only, any applicable criteria or 
requirements of the California RPS Program in force and effect 
regarding the eligibility or qualification of the Category 1 Product 
to meet the criteria of Section 399.16(b)(1) of the California Public 
Utilities Code or this Confirmation or the Transaction confirmed 
hereby for the California RPS Program, including without 
limitation any eligibility criteria applicable to an out-of-state 
resource. 

(j) “Category 2 Product Eligibility Requirements” means, with respect 
to Category 2 Product only, any applicable criteria or requirements 
of the California RPS Program in force and effect regarding the 
eligibility or qualification of the Category 2 Product to meet the 
criteria of Section 399.16(b)(2) of the California Public Utilities 
Code or this Confirmation or the Transaction confirmed hereby for 
the California RPS Program, including without limitation any 
eligibility criteria applicable to an out-of-state resource. 

(k) “Category Product” means Category 1 Product or Category 2 
Product, as applicable. 



12 
(l) “Compliance Obligation” has the meaning set forth by the Cap and 

Trade Regulations. 

(m) “CPUC” means the California Public Utilities Commission.  

(n) “Effective Date” means the date on which both Parties have 
executed and delivered this Confirmation. 

(o) “Eligible Facility” means a generation facility that is certified as an 
eligible renewable energy resource for the California RPS Program 
and from which Seller is entitled to energy and associated Green 
Attributes generated during the Generation Term (or portion 
thereof in respect of which bundled energy and associated Green 
Attributes to be delivered hereunder are generated by such 
facility). 

(p) “Eligibility Requirements” means Category 1 Product Eligibility 
Requirements or Category 2 Product Eligibility Requirements, as 
applicable. 

(q) “Energy” means Project Energy or Substitute Energy, as 
applicable. 

(r) “Energy Commission” or “CEC” means the California Energy 
Resources Conservation and Development Commission, which is 
also commonly referred to as the California Energy Commission. 

(s) “Generally Accepted Utility Practice” means a practice established 
by the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (“WECC”) or 
any successor regional reliability council, as such practice may be 
revised from time to time, or if no practice is so established, means 
a practice otherwise generally accepted in the WECC region. 

(t) “Green Attributes” means any and all credits, benefits, emissions 
reductions, offsets, and allowances, howsoever entitled, 
attributable to the generation from the Project, and its avoided 
emission of pollutants.  Green Attributes include but are not 
limited to Renewable Energy Credits, as well as:  (1) any avoided 
emission of pollutants to the air, soil or water such as sulfur oxides 
(SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO) and other 
pollutants; (2) any avoided emissions of carbon dioxide (CO2), 
methane (CH4), nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, 
perfluorocarbons, sulfur hexafluoride and other greenhouse gases 
(GHGs) that have been determined by the United Nations 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, or otherwise by law, 
to contribute to the actual or potential threat of altering the Earth’s 
climate by trapping heat in the atmosphere;1 (3) the reporting 

                                                 
1  Avoided emissions may or may not have any value for GHG compliance purposes.  Although avoided emissions 
are included in the list of Green Attributes, this inclusion does not create any right to use those avoided emissions to 
comply with any GHG regulatory program. 



13 
rights to these avoided emissions, such as Green Tag Reporting 
Rights.  Green Tag Reporting Rights are the right of a Green Tag 
Purchaser to report the ownership of accumulated Green Tags in 
compliance with federal or state law, if applicable, and to a federal 
or state agency or any other party at the Green Tag Purchaser’s 
discretion, and include without limitation those Green Tag 
Reporting Rights accruing under Section 1605(b) of The Energy 
Policy Act of 1992 and any present or future federal, state, or local 
law, regulation or bill, and international or foreign emissions 
trading program.  Green Tags are accumulated on a MWh basis 
and one Green Tag represents the Green Attributes associated with 
one (1) MWh of Energy.  Green Attributes do not include (i) any 
energy, capacity, reliability or other power attributes from the 
Project, (ii) production tax credits associated with the construction 
or operation of the Project and other financial incentives in the 
form of credits, reductions, or allowances associated with the 
project that are applicable to a state or federal income taxation 
obligation, (iii) fuel-related subsidies or “tipping fees” that may be 
paid to Seller to accept certain fuels, or local subsidies received by 
the generator for the destruction of particular preexisting pollutants 
or the promotion of local environmental benefits, or (iv) emission 
reduction credits encumbered or used by the Project for 
compliance with local, state, or federal operating and/or air quality 
permits.  If the Project is a biomass or biogas facility and Seller 
receives any tradable Green Attributes based on the greenhouse 
gas reduction benefits or other emission offsets attributed to its fuel 
usage, it shall provide Buyer with sufficient Green Attributes to 
ensure that there are zero net emissions associated with the 
production of electricity from the Project.   

(u) “Green Tag” and “Green Tag Reporting Rights” have the 
meanings set forth in the definition of “Green Attributes”, and for 
the purposes of this Transaction, “Green Tag Purchaser” means 
Buyer. 

(v) “Holiday” means any day designated as a holiday by NERC. 

(w) “Mandatory Reporting Rule” means the regulations entitled 
Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting set forth at 
Article 2 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

(x)  “Off Peak” hours means Mondays through Saturdays hours ending 
(HE) 0100-0600 and HE 2300-2400 PPT, and all day Sundays and 
Holidays. 

(y) “Party” means Buyer or Seller, and “Parties” means both Buyer 
and Seller. 

(z) “Peak” hours means HE 0700-2200 PPT Mondays through 
Saturdays, excluding Holidays. 



14 
(aa) “Pricing Node” or “PNode” has the meaning set forth in the 

CAISO Tariff. 

(bb) “Project” means Designated Facility up to the Seller’s contractual 
rights to the energy and Green Attributes produced by such 
Designated Facility. 

(cc) “Renewable Energy Credit” or “REC” means a renewable energy 
credit as defined by and in accordance with the California Public 
Utilities Code. 

(dd) “RPS Adjustment” means the reduction in the Compliance 
Obligation of an electricity importer authorized by and calculated 
in accordance with section 95852 (b)(4) of the Cap and Trade 
Regulations and section 95111(b)(5) of the Mandatory Reporting 
Rule. 

(ee) “RPS ID” means the “California Energy Commission RPS 
certification number”, the “identification number” and/or the “RPS 
ID”, as such terms are used by the CEC to describe the 
identification number for an eligible renewable energy resource 
that has been certified (or will be certified for the period of 
deliveries) as such by the CEC for the purposes of the RPS.  The 
RPS ID for each Designated Facility is set out beside the 
applicable facility under the column “RPS ID” in the table attached 
hereto as Schedule “A”. 

(ff) “Scheduling Point” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff, 
including (without limitation) the SYLMARDC_2_N501 and 
MALIN_5_N101 Scheduling Points. 

(gg) “Seller Eligibility Failure”  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(hh) “Seller Shortfall”  
 
 
 
 

 



15 
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(ii) “Specified Source” means “specified source”, as such term is 
defined in the Mandatory Reporting Rule. 

(jj) “WREGIS” means the Western Renewable Energy Generation 
Information System or any successor renewable energy tracking 
program. 

(kk) “WREGIS Certificate” means a “Certificate” as defined by 
WREGIS in the WREGIS Operating Rules and designated by law 
as eligible for complying with the California RPS Program and for 
evidencing the Green Attributes associated with the Product. 

(ll) “WREGIS Operating Rules” means the operating rules and 
requirement adopted by WREGIS, as amended from time to time. 

ADDITIONAL TERMS 
 
1. Force Majeure.  For purposes of this Transaction, the Products shall be subject to Force 

Majeure and Section 3.3 of the Master Agreement such that, upon receipt of written 
notice of Force Majeure from the Party prevented by the Force Majeure from carrying out 
its obligations hereunder, both Parties will be relieved of their respective obligations to 
schedule, sell and deliver or purchase and receive the affected Category Product(s) 
without liability to the extent that, and for the period during which, such performance is 
prevented by Force Majeure, and the Master Agreement is hereby amended by editing 
paragraph (iii) of the definition of Force Majeure in Section 1.23 to read as follows: 

“the loss or failure of Seller’s supply, except, with respect to the Green 
Attributes, to the extent Seller’s supply is itself subject to an event of 
Force Majeure;”  

 



16 
For greater certainty and without limiting the foregoing, neither a Regulatory 
Determination nor change in law shall be an event of Force Majeure for the purposes of 
this Transaction.  In the event and to the extent that the Category 1 Product and/or 
Category 2 Product generated by or attributable to a Project do not meet or satisfy the 
Eligibility Requirements as a result of any other event or circumstance which otherwise 
meets the definition of Force Majeure, that will be considered an event of Force Majeure 
for the purposes of this Confirmation, and the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity 
and/or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, as applicable, provided for in this 
Confirmation shall be reduced to the extent of and by the amount affected by such event 
of Force Majeure.   
 

2. Negotiations Respecting Failure to Satisfy Eligibility Requirements.  In the event that a 
Category Product generated by and/or attributable to the Projects does not meet or satisfy 
the Eligibility Requirements for reasons other than a Buyer Eligibility Failure or a Seller 
Eligibility Failure, the Parties will negotiate in good faith using commercially reasonable 
efforts to revise or amend this Confirmation as appropriate to meet applicable 
requirements so that such Category 1 Product and/or Category 2 Product meets or 
satisfies the applicable Eligibility Requirements, in a manner consistent with the intent of 
the Parties as set out in this Confirmation. 

3. Anticipated Shortfall – Category 2 Product.  If Seller reasonably anticipates that there 
will be a Seller Shortfall in respect of the Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, Seller 
shall provide written notice to Buyer on or before September 15 of the Delivery Term.  
Upon Buyer’s receipt of such notice, the Parties will negotiate in good faith using 
commercially reasonable efforts to determine whether Seller may deliver a product 
comparable to the Category 2 Product generated by or attributable to an Alternate 
Eligible Facility or Alternate Source equal to the amount of such anticipated Seller 
Shortfall.  If the Parties mutually agree to such arrangements, they will enter into a 
separate agreement respecting same and Buyer will waive the Seller Shortfall and any 
liquidated damages payable pursuant to this Confirmation in respect of the Seller 
Shortfall.  In the event Seller reasonably anticipates a shortfall in delivery of Category 2 
Product that is not or is not likely to be a Seller Shortfall, the Seller may elect to have this 
Section 3 apply (and thereupon this Section 3 will apply) by giving the written notice 
referred to herein stating such election. 

4. Failure to Deliver/Receive.  For purposes of this Transaction: 

(a) the references to the “Contract Price” in Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of the Master 
Agreement, and those Sections only, shall be deemed to refer to the Energy Price 
only, except in the event and to the extent that there is a Seller Shortfall or a 
Buyer Shortfall, in which case such references shall be deemed to include the 
Category 1 REC Price and/or the Category 2 REC Price, as applicable, subject to 
Section 4(d) of this Confirmation; 

(b) the definition of “Replacement Price” in Section 1.51 of the Master Agreement 
shall be amended by adding the following proviso at the end of the first sentence 
of such definition: 

“; and further provided that the Replacement Price shall not 
include any premium or other amount paid or payable to replace 
the Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product not delivered by 



17 
Seller with electric energy from renewable sources or paid or 
payable for Green Attributes, renewable energy certificates, or 
similar credits, rights or offsets associated with replacement 
electric energy, except in the event and to the extent that there is a 
Seller Shortfall, in which case the Replacement Price shall include 
such premium, subject to Section 4(e) of this Agreement.” 
 

(c) the definition of “Sales Price” in Section 1.53 of the Master Agreement shall be 
amended by adding the following proviso at the end of the first sentence of such 
definition: 

“; and further provided that the Sales Price shall not include any 
premium or other amount paid or payable on the basis that the 
energy is attributed to renewable sources or is sold with any 
associated Green Attributes, renewable energy certificates, or 
similar credits, rights or offsets, except in the event and to the 
extent that there is a Buyer Shortfall, in which case the Sales Price 
shall include such premium, subject to Section 4(f) of this 
Agreement.” 

 
(d) In the event and to the extent that there is a Seller Shortfall that is not waived 

pursuant to Section 3 of this Confirmation, any amount payable pursuant to 
Section 4.1 of the Master Agreement shall only be calculated and payable on and 
with respect to the amount of such Seller Shortfall that is not waived pursuant to 
Section 3 of this Confirmation. 

(e)  
 
 
 

   

(f)  
  

 
   

 

5. Events of Default; Remedies.  For purposes of this Transaction: 

(a) For the purposes of determining payments under Section 5.2 of the Master 
Agreement, with respect to this Transaction, the economic benefits or losses of 
the Non-Defaulting Party resulting from termination of this Transaction shall be 
based on both the energy and Green Attributes components of the Product. 

(b) The remedies for failure to deliver the Product (including Green Attributes) 
provided for in the Master Agreement as amended by this Confirmation are the 
sole and exclusive remedies associated with a failure to deliver, receive or 
schedule the Product and all other remedies related thereto are waived. 

6. Seller Eligibility Requirements and Non-Modifiable or Standard Terms. 



18 
(a) Seller shall be responsible for ensuring that: (i) each Designated Facility is 

certified as an eligible renewable energy resource for the California RPS Program 
prior to delivery of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product hereunder; and (ii) 
the Green Attributes have been or will be transferred to Seller and will be 
transferrable to Buyer through or using WREGIS, or such similar generation 
information or attributes tracking system as may be approved by or other method 
of transfer acceptable to the Energy Commission for the purposes of meeting 
Buyer’s obligations under the California RPS Program;  

(b) Seller warrants that all necessary steps to allow the Renewable Energy Credits 
transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable Energy Generation 
Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery under the contract 
[STC REC-2]; 

(c) Seller hereby provides and conveys all Green Attributes associated with all 
electricity generation from the Project to Buyer as part of the Product being 
delivered.  Seller represents and warrants that Seller holds the rights to all Green 
Attributes from the Project, and Seller agrees to convey and hereby conveys all 
such Green Attributes to Buyer as included in the delivery of the Product from the 
Project; and 

(d) For the purposes of this Transaction: 

(i) Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that 
throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project 
qualifies and is certified by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy 
Resource (“ERR”) as such term is defined in Public Utilities Code Section 
399.12 or Section 399.16; and (ii) the Project’s output delivered to Buyer 
qualifies under the requirements of the California Renewables Portfolio 
Standard.  To the extent a change in law occurs after execution of this 
Agreement that causes this representation and warranty to be materially 
false or misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law [STC 
6]; and 

(ii) Seller and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that 
throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the Renewable Energy 
Credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attributes 
required for compliance with the California Renewables Portfolio 
Standard, as set forth in California Public Utilities Commission Decision 
08-08-028, and as may be modified by subsequent decision of the 
California Public Utilities Commission or by subsequent legislation. To 
the extent a change in law occurs after execution of this Agreement that 
causes this representation and warranty to be materially false or 
misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law. [STC 
REC-1] 

For the purposes of STC 6 above, for the Category 2 Product, the Parties 
acknowledge that Substitute Energy, in substitution for Project Energy, and Green 
Attributes are delivered to Buyer. 



19 
As used in this Section 6(d), “Delivery Term” has the same meaning as 
“Generation Term” provided that, for the purposes of STC 6 above with respect to 
any Project, the Parties agree that the representation and warranty therein applies 
only to the portion of the Delivery Term during which the output from that Project 
is being delivered to the Buyer.  As used in this Agreement, a “change in law” 
refers to any determination, decision, application of, or change in law or policy 
after the Trade Date by or of the CEC or the CPUC or other applicable 
governmental or regulatory authority or third party having authority or 
jurisdiction, excluding a Regulatory Determination. 

The Parties agree that, so long as the Seller has used commercially reasonable 
efforts to comply with a change in law resulting in either of the above 
representations and warranties becoming incorrect, it shall not be a Seller 
Shortfall or Seller Eligibility Failure and the Buyer shall, subject to the 
“Regulatory Determination/Change in Law” section of this Confirmation, receive 
and pay for any Product supplied hereunder notwithstanding any non-compliance 
with the California RPS Program resulting from the change in law. 

7. Commercially Reasonable Efforts  

(a) A Party required to use or make “commercially reasonable efforts” pursuant to 
this Agreement shall not be required to incur more than  in aggregate 
direct or indirect costs, including lost profits, and out-of-pocket costs and 
expenses, to comply with such “commercially reasonable efforts”, and then only 
to the extent incurring such costs would be reasonably likely to achieve the 
desired effect. 

(b) In the event an issue or circumstance requiring a Party to use or make 
commercially reasonable efforts similarly affects one or more other transactions 
between the Parties, such  limit shall apply to all such transactions 
between the Parties and shall not be cumulative to any limits applicable to such 
other transactions.  

8. Meter and Scheduling Information. Throughout the Delivery Term, Seller shall provide 
to Buyer the following information as and to the extent necessary for Buyer to comply 
with the requirements of the California RPS Program: (i) meter data from the Project 
related to the delivery of Category 1 Product, (ii) all E-tag information related to the 
delivery of Category 1 Product into the CAISO Balancing Authority, and (iii) any other 
scheduling or delivery information necessary to meet the requirements of the California 
RPS Program.   

9. Specified Source – Category 1 Product. The Parties acknowledge that Seller intends to 
claim that the Category 1 Product delivered into the CAISO Balancing Authority, to meet 
the requirement under this Confirmation, is from a Specified Source. In order to assist 
Seller in claiming that Category 1 Product is from a Specified Source, Buyer agrees that 
by May 15 following the end of each calendar year in the Generation Term it will provide 
Seller with a written attestation providing a detailed breakdown of the total quantity of 
RECs transferred under this Confirmation associated with the Category 1 Product that 
have been placed in a WREGIS retirement subaccount and those that remain in a 
WREGIS active subaccount.  This provision shall survive expiry or earlier termination of 



20 
this Transaction until such time as the information contemplated herein in respect of the 
last year of the Generation Term is provided to Seller by Buyer. 

10. RPS Adjustment – Category 2 Product. The Parties acknowledge that Seller intends to 
mitigate its Compliance Obligation for the Category 2 Product, which it imports into 
California under this Confirmation, by claiming the RPS Adjustment. Buyer agrees to 
provide Seller, following Seller’s written request, with the information required by Seller 
for the purpose of claiming the RPS Adjustment including, but not limited to, providing 
by May 15 following the end of each calendar year in the Generation Term a written 
attestation to Seller that the quantity of RECs transferred under this Confirmation 
associated with the immediately previous calendar year in the Generation Term as 
Category 2 Product have been placed in Buyer’s WREGIS retirement subaccount and that 
these RECs have been designated for retirement for the purposes of Buyer’s compliance 
with the California RPS Program for the applicable year in the Generation Term in 
accordance with the Cap and Trade Regulation. This provision shall survive expiry or 
earlier termination of this Transaction until such time as the information contemplated 
herein in respect of the last year of the Generation Term is provided to Seller by Buyer. 

Buyer represents and warrants that, as of May 15 following the end of each calendar year 
in the Generation Term (or the date of the written attestation referenced above, whichever 
is earlier), the quantity of RECs transferred under this Confirmation associated with the 
immediately previous calendar year in the Generation Term as Category 2 Product have 
been placed in Buyer’s WREGIS retirement subaccount and that these RECs have been 
designated for retirement for the purposes of Buyer’s compliance with the California RPS 
Program for the applicable year in the Generation Term in accordance with the Cap and 
Trade Regulation. 
 
Buyer will promptly notify Seller in writing if any RECs associated with Category 2 
Product delivered to Buyer under this Confirmation are subsequently withdrawn from 
Buyer’s WREGIS retirement subaccount and provide Seller with the vintage year and 
month, serial numbers and any other information with respect to any such RECs 
withdrawn from Buyer’s WREGIS retirement subaccount as may be required by Seller to 
comply with Section 95111.g.1.M.2 of the Mandatory Reporting Rule (or any similar 
successor provision).  
 
The preceding Sections 9 and 10 are based on the Cap and Trade Regulations and 
Mandatory Reporting Rule as of the Trade Date of this Confirmation. In the event that the 
regulatory requirements for mitigating the Compliance Obligation change after the Trade 
Date, Buyer shall make commercially reasonable efforts to assist Seller in meeting such 
regulatory requirements. 
 

11. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder shall 
be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of 
the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law.  To the extent 
enforceable at such time, each Party waives its respective right to any jury trial with 
respect to any litigation arising under or in connection with this Agreement. [STC 17] 

12.  
 
 
 
 



21 
 

 

This Confirmation is being provided pursuant to and in accordance with the Master Agreement, 
and constitutes part of and is subject to the terms and provisions of the Master Agreement.  
Terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master 
Agreement. 
 
The Parties agree it is their intention that the Transaction provided for in this Confirmation is not 
capable of being agreed to orally and shall only become binding on the Parties when this 
Confirmation is executed by both Parties. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
Powerex Corp. * Peninsula Clean Energy Authority, a 

California joint powers authority 
 
By:      By:      
 
Name:      Name:      
 
Title:      Title:      
 
Date:      Date:      
 
* Powerex Corp., doing business in California as Powerex Energy Corp. 
 
Contacts:  Powerex:     PCEA: 
 
 Anthony Des Lauriers    Jan Pepper 
 Tel:   (604) 891-6018   Tel: (415) 309-9206 
 Fax:   (604) 891-5056   Fax: (415) 363-4034 
  



22 
 
 

  SCHEDULE “A” 
 

Designated Facility(s) 
 

Part A – Initial Designated Facilities 
 

Facility Name State / 
Province 

Technology RPS ID Total 
Facility 
Nameplate 
(MW) 

Delivery Point 
 
(In-State 
Facilities Only) 

 
 

     

      

       

 
 

      

 
       

      

 
 

 
 
Part B – Additional Designated Facilities for Category 1 Product 
 
[to be added under the terms of the section - “Additional Designated Facilities” as required] 

 
 



Item	No.	12		

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO,  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 *  *  *  *  *  *  

RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 

AUTHORITY CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 

______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLVED, by the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority of the County of San 

Mateo, State of California (“Peninsula Clean Energy” or “PCE”), that 

WHEREAS, PCE was formed on February 29, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.5 of the PCE Joint Powers Agreement states that the 

“Board may establish any advisory commissions, boards, and committees as the Board 

deems appropriate to assist the Board”; and  

WHEREAS, PCE believes that establishment of an advisory committee, made up 

of members drawn from the community, would assist PCE in carrying out its mission; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved the creation of a Citizens Advisory Committee 

(“Committee” or “CAC”) on February 23, 2017, to be appointed by the PCE Board 

through an application process including review and recommendation by an ad hoc 

committee of the PCE Board; and 



-2- 

	

WHEREAS, the Board publicly solicited applications for the Citizens Advisory 

Committee from throughout the county during the period of April 1, 2017, through  

April 30, 2017, these applications were reviewed by the ad hoc committee, and that ad 

hoc committee has recommended specific applicants for appointment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Board appoints the individuals listed in Attachment 1 hereto as members of the Citizens 

Advisory Committee.  

 

*  *  *  *  *  * 



Item No. 14 

1	
	

	
	

REGULAR	MEETING	and	SPECIAL	MEETING	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	
Peninsula	Clean	Energy	Authority	(PCEA)	

Thursday,	April	27,	2017	
MINUTES	

	
San	Mateo	County	Office	of	Education,	Corte	Madera	Room		

101	Twin	Dolphin	Drive,	Redwood	City,	CA	94065	
6:30pm	

	
	
CALL	TO	ORDER	
	
Meeting	was	called	to	order	at	6:36	pm.	
	
ROLL	CALL	
	
Present:	 Dave	Pine,	County	of	San	Mateo,	Chair	

Carole	Groom,	County	of	San	Mateo	
Rick	DeGolia,	Town	of	Atherton	
Charles	Stone,	City	of	Belmont	
Donna	Colson,	City	of	Burlingame	
Rae	P.	Gonzalez,	Town	of	Colma	
Larry	Moody,	City	of	East	Palo	Alto	
Elizabeth	Cullinan,	Town	of	Hillsborough	
Ann	Schneider,	City	of	Millbrae		
John	Keener,	City	of	Pacifica	
Jeff	Aalfs,	Town	of	Portola	Valley,	Vice	Chair	
Ian	Bain,	City	of	Redwood	City	
Marty	Medina,	City	of	San	Bruno	
Ron	Collins,	City	of	San	Carlos	
Rick	Bonilla,	City	of	San	Mateo		
Pradeep	Gupta,	City	of	South	San	Francisco	
Daniel	Yost,	Town	of	Woodside	
	

Absent:		 City	of	Brisbane	
	 	 City	of	Daly	City	

City	of	Foster	City	
City	of	Half	Moon	Bay	
City	of	Menlo	Park	

	
Staff:	 	 Jan	Pepper,	Chief	Executive	Officer	



Item No. 14 

2	
	

George	Wiltsee,	Director	of	Power	Resources	
Dan	Lieberman,	Director	of	Marketing	and	Public	Affairs	
Siobhan	Doherty,	Manager	of	Contracts	
Joseph	Wiedman,	Senior	Regulatory/Legislative	Analyst	
Kirsten	Andrews-Schwind,	Communications	and	Outreach	Manager	
Leslie	Brown,	Manager	of	Customer	Care	
Anne	Bartoletti,	Board	Clerk/Executive	Assistant	to	the	CEO	
David	Silberman,	General	Counsel	

	 	 	
	
A	quorum	was	established.	
	
PUBLIC	COMMENT:	
	
No	public	comment.	
	
	
ACTION	TO	SET	THE	AGENDA	AND	APPROVE	CONSENT	AGENDA	ITEMS	
	
Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Bain	/	Stone	
	
Motion	passed	unanimously	16-0		(Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	Menlo	
Park,	San	Mateo)	
	
	
PUBLIC	COMMENT	
	
No	public	comment.	
	
	
REGULAR	AGENDA	

1. CHAIR	REPORT		

Dave	Pine—Chair—welcomed	Board	members	and	attendees.		He	noted	that	there	would	be	a	
special	meeting	tonight	as	well	as	the	regular	meeting.			He	announced	that	Peninsula	Clean	
Energy	(PCE)	is	completing	Phase	2	of	customer	enrollment,	so	the	entire	County	of	San	Mateo	is	
on	at	least	50%	clean	energy.		
	

2. CEO	REPORT	

Jan	Pepper—Chief	Executive	Officer—announced	that	PCE	is	now	the	largest	CCA	(Community	
Choice	Aggregator)	in	California,	and	that	several	Board	members	attended	PCE’s	Phase	2	press	
event	on	April	19th	at	Hillsdale	shopping	center.		She	reported	that	PCE	still	maintains	a	low	opt	
out	rate	of	1.3%	and	customer	accounts	now	near	300,000.		She	announced	that	PCE	staff	has	
been	expanded	by	25%	with	the	addition	of	two	new	employees:		Siobhan	Doherty,	Manager	of	
Contracts,	and	Joe	Wiedman,	Senior	Regulatory/Legislative	Analyst.		She	announced	that	an	
Energy	Analyst	position	has	been	posted,	that	will	be	open	for	applications	until	May	3rd.		She	
also	announced	several	important	dates	coming	up:	the	online	application	for	the	Citizens	



Item No. 14 

3	
	

Advisory	Committee	will	be	open	until	April	30th;	PCE	staff	will	present	“PCE	101”	energy	basics	
training	for	new	Board	members	the	week	of	May	15th;	and	“PCE	202”—the	deeper	dive	into	
PCIA,	will	take	place	the	1st	week	of	June.	
	
	

3. MARKETING	AND	OUTREACH	REPORT			

Dan	Lieberman—Director	of	Marketing	and	Public	Affairs—reported	on	marketing	and	outreach	
efforts,	including	Earth	Day	events,	and	PCE	sponsorship	and	conferences.			
	
	

4. REGULATORY	AND	LEGISLATIVE	REPORT			

Joseph	Wiedman—Senior	Regulatory/Legislative	Analyst—reported	on	regulatory	and	legislative	
efforts,	including	meeting	with	State	Senator	Scott	Wiener	on	March	31	regarding	SB	618;	
attending	the	Senate	Energy	Utilities	&	Communications	Committee	Hearing	on	SB	618	on	April	
18th;	an	April	20th	meeting	with	PG&E	(Pacific	Gas	and	Electric	Company),	MCE	(Marin	Clean	
Energy),	and	SCP	(Sonoma	Clean	Power)	on	a	default	TOU	(Time	Of	Use)	pilot	program.		Joe	
provided	updates	on	several	pieces	of	legislation	that	would	impact	CCAs,	including	SB	618,	AB	
79,	AB	1405,	SB	338,	and	SB	679.			
	

5. INTEGRATED	RESOURCE	PLAN	
	
Joe	Wiedman	and	George	Wiltsee—Director	of	Power	Resources—presented	considerations	for	
an	Integrated	Resource	Plan	(IRP),	including	resource	planning	goals,	electric	load	forecasts,	the	
mix	of	resources,	procurement	methods,	and	risk	management,	and	how	those	relate	to	PCE’s	
strategic	procurement	targets.		They	reported	that	although	there	are	currently	no	final	
requirements	from	the	CPUC	on	the	components	of	an	IRP,	PCE	is	working	on	an	IRP	to	submit	to	
the	Board	for	approval,	and	then	ultimately	to	the	CPUC	to	be	certified.	
	
	

6. AUTHORIZE	THE	CHIEF	EXECUTIVE	OFFICER	TO	EXECUTE	AN	EEI	(EDISON	ELECTRIC	INSTITUTE)	
MASTER	AGREEMENT	AND	CONFIRMATION	AGREEMENT	FOR	PURCHASE	OF	RESOURCE	
ADEQUACY	FROM	PACIFIC	GAS	AND	ELECTRIC	COMPANY	(PG&E).		POWER	DELIVERY	TERM:	
JULY	1,	2017	THROUGH	DECEMBER	31,	2017,	IN	AN	AMOUNT	NOT	TO	EXCEED	$3,300,000	
	
Siobhan	Doherty—Manager	of	Contracts—reported	that	while	PCE	solicited	proposals	for	
Resource	Adequacy	(RA)	for	July	through	December	2017,	PG&E	posted	its	own	proposal	and	PCE	
bid	on	it	for	this	purchase.			She	explained	that	this	is	not	energy,	it	is	capacity.		Jan	Pepper	
explained	that	in	the	bid,	PCE	specifically	requested	that	coal	and	nuclear	be	excluded.		The	
Board	discussed	the	pros	and	cons	of	biomass,	how	it’s	handled	in	California,	and	the	option	of	
creating	a	policy	in	the	future.				
	
Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Gupta	/	Moody	
	
Motion	passed	15-1		(Opposed:		Schneider.		Abstain:	Yost.		Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	
City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	Menlo	Park)			



Item No. 14 

4	
	

	
SPECIAL	MEETING	AGENDA	

1. AUTHORIZE	THE	CHIEF	EXECUTIVE	OFFICER	TO	EXECUTE	A	LONG	FORM	CONFIRMATION	
AGREEMENT	WITH	PACIFIC	GAS	AND	ELECTRIC	COMPANY	(PG&E)	FOR	PURCHASE	OF	PCC1	
RENEWABLE	ENERGY.		POWER	DELIVERY	TERM:		JULY	1,	2017	THROUGH	DECEMBER	31,	2017,	
IN	AN	AMOUNT	NOT	TO	EXCEED	$7,000,000		
	
Siobhan	Doherty	reported	that	PCE	has	already	purchased	energy	for	Phase	1,	and	is	now	
purchasing	for	Phase	2	power	delivery.		She	explained	that	PCE	responded	to	a	solicitation	from	
PG&E	for	this	purchase.		Jan	explained	that	a	number	of	suppliers	were	approached,	but	this	
purchase	represents	the	best	price	and	it	falls	within	PCE’s	projected	budget.			

Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Stone	/	DeGolia	
	
Motion	passed	16-0		(Abstain:	Yost.		Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	
Menlo	Park)			

2. AUTHORIZE	THE	CHIEF	EXECUTIVE	OFFICER	TO	EXECUTE	TWO	EEI	(EDISON	ELECTRIC	INSTITUTE)	
CONFIRMATION	AGREEMENTS	FOR	PURCHASE	OF	RESOURCE	ADEQUACY	FROM	SHELL	ENERGY	
NORTH	AMERICA	(SHELL)	WITH	(1)	POWER	DELIVERY	TERM:	JULY	1,	2017	THORUGH	DECEMBER	
31,	2017	IN	AN	AMOUNT	NOT	TO	EXCEED	$85,000;	AND	(2)	POWER	DELIVERY	TERM:	JULY	2017,	
IN	AN	AMOUNT	NOT	TO	EXCEED	$40,000		

Siobhan	Doherty	reported	that	this	purchase	has	the	lowest	price,	and	that	PCE	already	had	a	
master	agreement	with	Shell.			

Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Stone	/	DeGolia	
	
Motion	passed	16-0		(Abstain:	Yost.		Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	
Menlo	Park)			

	
RETURN	TO	REGULAR	AGENDA	

7. AUTHORIZE	THE	CHIEF	EXECUTIVE	OFFICER	TO	EXECUTE	A	CONTRACT	FOR	PURCHASE	AND	
INSTALLATION	OF	OFFICE	FURNITURE	IN	AN	AMOUNT	NOT	TO	EXCEED	$250,000	
	
Jan	Pepper	reported	that	the	landlord	at	the	new	office	building	hired	a	contractor	and	
construction	is	about	to	begin	on	PCE’s	new	office	space.		She	said	PCE’s	office	design	will	
support	26	employees	and	will	be	able	to	host	the	monthly	Board	meetings.		She	explained	that	
she	needs	authorization	to	move	forward	in	the	process	of	selecting	a	furniture	vendor	before	
the	next	Board	meeting	so	the	vendor	can	immediately	begin	coordinating	with	the	landlord	and	
contractor	on	electrical	needs	and	cabling	locations.		Some	Board	members	requested	that	union	
labor	be	considered	for	the	installation,	and	that	American-made	furniture	be	considered	in	the	
purchase	decision.				
	
Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Bain	/	Yost	
	
Motion	passed	unanimously	17-0		(Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	
Menlo	Park)			



Item No. 14 

5	
	

	
	

8. FORMATION	OF	A	STANDING	AUDIT	AND	FINANCE	COMMITTEE	
	
Donna	Colson—City	of	Burlingame—reported	that	the	Audit	and	Finance	Committee	will	have	
three	goals,	help	PCE:			1)	hire	an	auditor	for	the	fiscal	year	end,	2)	get	ready	for	the	first	annual	
audit,	and	3)	with	the	budgeting	process.		David	Silberman	explained	that	the	Board,	among	its	
options,	can	appoint	members,	or	decide	on	the	size	of	the	committee	and	delegate	to	the	Chair	
of	the	Board	appointment	of	the	members.		Dave	Pine	noted	that	the	following	members	
expressed	interest:		Lori	Liu,	Larry	May,	Daniel	Yost,	and	Donna	Colson.		Donna	reported	that	the	
committee	would	also	select	an	auditor	in	the	near	future.		Motion	to	approve	creation	of	a	
Committee	of	between	3	and	5	members	appointed	by	the	Chair	of	the	Board.			
	
Motion	Made	/	Seconded:			Stone	/	Gupta	
	
Motion	passed	unanimously	17-0		(Absent:		Brisbane,	Daly	City,	Foster	City,	Half	Moon	Bay,	
Menlo	Park)				
	
	

9. UPDATE	FROM	AD	HOC	COMMITTEE	ON	FORMATION	OF	NEW	CITIZENS	ADVISORY	
COMMITTEE		

Kirsten	Andews-Schwind—Communications	and	Outreach	Manager—reported	that	the	deadline	
to	apply	for	the	Citizens	Advisory	Committee	(CAC)	is	April	30th.		After	the	deadline	has	passed,	a	
committee	will	meet	to	review	the	candidates	with	the	intent	that	recommended	members	
might	be	presented	at	the	next	Board	meeting.		
	

10. FINANCIAL	REPORT	
	
Jan	Pepper	presented	PCE’s	most	recent	financial	reports,	showing	March	assets	of	$24	Million.		
She	reported	that	PCE	is	ahead	of	initial	revenue	forecasts,	and	may	be	able	to	pay	off	loans	by	
the	end	of	2017.		She	reported	that	she’s	working	on	a	job	description	for	a	Finance	Director	so	
that	position	can	be	posted	in	the	near	future.	
		
	

11. BOARD	MEMBERS’	REPORTS	

Charles	Stone	announced	Earth	Day	activities	in	Belmont	on	Saturday	the	29th.		Marty	Medina	
announced	the	Relay	for	Life	in	San	Bruno	on	Saturday	the	29th.		Larry	Moody	announced	the	
Council	of	Cities	on	May	19th	at	5pm	in	East	Palo	Alto.		Pradeep	Gupta	announced	he	would	
participate	in	a	panel	discussion	on	CCAs	in	San	Francisco	on	May	3rd.		
	

	
ADJOURNMENT	
	
Meeting	was	adjourned	at	8:51	pm.	



 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
  JPA Board Correspondence 

Item No. 15 

 
DATE: May 18, 2017 

BOARD MEETING DATE:         May 25, 2017 
SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 

VOTE REQUIRED: Majority Present 
 
TO: 
 

Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 
 

Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Resource Adequacy (Energy America) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Chief Executive Office to execute an EEI Confirmation Agreement for 
purchase of Resource Adequacy from Energy America (Direct Energy).  Delivery Term: 
August 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $120,000.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The CPUC has explained Resource Adequacy as follows: 
 
The CPUC adopted a Resource Adequacy (RA) policy framework (PU Code 
section 380) in 2004 to in order to ensure the reliability of electric service in 
California. The CPUC established RA obligations applicable to all Load 
Serving Entities (LSEs) within the CPUC’s jurisdiction, including investor 
owned utilities (IOUs), energy service providers (ESPs), and community 
choice aggregators (CCAs). The Commission’s RA policy framework – 
implemented as the RA program -- guides resource procurement and 
promotes infrastructure investment by requiring that LSEs procure capacity 
so that capacity is available to the CAISO when and where needed. The 
CPUC’s RA program now contains three distinct requirements: System RA 
requirements (effective June 1, 2006), Local RA requirements (effective 
January 1, 2007) and Flexible RA requirements (effective January 1, 2015). 
System requirements are determined based on each LSE’s CEC 
adjusted forecast plus a 15% planning reserve margin. Local requirements 
are determined based on an annual CAISO study using a 1-10 weather year 
and an N-1-1 contingency. Flexible Requirements are based on an annual 



 
 

2 
 

CAISO study that currently looks at the largest three hour ramp for each 
month needed to run the system reliably. There are two types of filings; 
Annual filings (filed on or around October 31st) and monthly filings (filed 45 
calendar days prior to the compliance month). 
For the annual filings, LSEs are required to make an annual System, Local, 
and Flexible compliance showing for the coming year. For the System 
showing, LSEs are required to demonstrate that they have procured 90% of 
their System RA obligation for the five summer months the coming 
compliance year. Additionally each LSE must demonstrate that they meet 
90% of its Flexible requirements and 100% of its local requirements for each 
month of the coming compliance year. For the monthly filings LSEs must 
demonstrate they have procured 100% of their monthly System and Flexible 
RA obligation. Additionally, on a monthly basis from May through 
December, LSEs must demonstrate they have met their revised (due to load 
migration) local obligation. 
 
This is a regulatory requirement. PCEA is not purchasing actual energy. It is paying to 
ensure that there is enough generation on the grid to ensure reliability. Further, because 
the regulatory requirements evolve over time, PCEA is frequently having to go to market 
to purchase RA to ensure the regulatory requirements are met and PCEA receives the 
most competitive prices possible.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
PCE, working with its consultant PEA, solicited proposals to supply System and Local 
RA for its third and fourth quarter 2017 needs (July-December).  Proposals were 
received from four different suppliers.   
 
Direct Energy offered a competitive response to provide sufficient quantities to meet 
PCE’s outstanding System RA requirements for August through September 2017.   
 
PCE has previously executed an EEI Master Agreement and Confirmation for RA with 
Direct Energy.  The Confirmation Agreement for this transaction is in substantially the 
same form as the one previously executed.   
 
The Board is being asked to approve execution of a Confirmation Agreement with Direct 
Energy, in a form approved by General Counsel.  
 

 



1	

	

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 

 *   *   *   *   *   *  

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO EXECUTE A CONFIRMATION AGREEMENT WITH ENERGY AMERICA FOR 

PURCHASE OF RESOURCE ADEQUACY WITH TERMS CONSISTENT WITH 

THOSE PRESENTED, IN A FORM APPROVED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL AND 

FOR A POWER DELIVERY TERM OF AUGUST 1, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $120,000 

______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLVED, by the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority of the County of San 

Mateo, State of California, that 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Peninsula Clean Energy” or 

“PCE”) was formed on February 29, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, as was true in 2016, PCE has ongoing commitments to purchase 

Resource Adequacy (“RA”); and 

WHEREAS, in April 2017 PCE solicited pricing on additional volumes for 

Resource Adequacy for 2017; and 



2	

	

WHEREAS, Energy America (“Direct Energy”) responded to this solicitation to 

fulfill a portion of PCE’s additional needs for resource adequacy for August through 

September, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, PCE has negotiated a Confirmation Agreement with Direct Energy 

for the necessary volumes, reference to which should be made for further particulars. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to execute the Confirmation 

Agreement with Direct Energy for RA with terms consistent with those presented, in a 

form approved by the General Counsel and for a power deliver term covering August 1, 

2017 through September 30, 2017 in an amount not to exceed $120,000. 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

 
























	00 PCE BOD 20170525 Agenda - final
	05 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on Amendment to 2016-2017 Budget
	05.1 PCE 2016-2017 Budget Amendment Spreadsheet
	06 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on Draft Budget Review
	07  Financial Report place holder
	08 Delinquent Account and Bad Debt collections Memo
	08.1 PCE Delinquent Accounts and Bad Debt Policy
	09 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on Agreements for Renewable Supply - Shiloh
	09.1 PCE Reso with Shiloh Wind Project for Authorization 5-25-2017 (1)
	09.2 REDACTED Shiloh PPA AR_PCE_5 10 17_AR execution version_(9205428)_(3)
	10 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on Carbon Free Energy Purchase from Powerex
	10.1 20170525 PCE Reso for Carbon Free Energy Purchase from Powerex
	10.2 Powerex EEI Cover Peninsula Clean Energy_REDACTED
	MASTER POWER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	COVER SHEET

	10.3 Powerex PCEA-Carbon Free Energy Confirm_REDACTED
	(a) “Applicable Law” means any statute, law, treaty, rule, tariff, regulation, ordinance, code, permit, enactment, injunction, order, writ, decision, authorization, judgment, decree or other legal or regulatory determination or restriction by a court ...
	(b) “CAISO Controlled Grid” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff.
	(c) “CAISO Tariff” means the applicable tariff and protocol provisions of the CAISO (as amended from time to time).
	(d) “Cap and Trade Regulation” means the regulations entitled California Cap on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Market-Based Compliance Mechanisms set forth at Article 5 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.
	(e) “CARB” means the California Air Resources Board of the California Environmental Protection Agency.
	(f) “Carbon Free Source” means any energy source, except for nuclear-powered generation assets, that is located within the Western Energy Coordinating Council (“WECC”) area and that is considered by the State of California to have zero Greenhouse Gas ...
	(g) “Category 3 Renewable” means renewable energy credits that satisfy the requirements of Section 399.16(b)(3) of the California Public Utilities Code.
	(h) “Effective Date” means the date on which both Parties have executed and delivered this Confirmation.
	(i) “Generally Accepted Utility Practice” means a practice established by WECC or any successor regional reliability council, as such practice may be revised from time to time, or if no practice is so established, means a practice otherwise generally ...
	(j) “Governmental Authority” means any federal, provincial, state, local or municipal government, governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality, or any judicial, regulatory or administrative body, or any applicable tra...
	(k) “HLH” means hours ending (“HE”) 0700-2200 PPT Mondays through Saturdays, excluding Holidays.
	(l) “Holiday” means any day designated as a holiday by NERC.
	(m) “LLH” means Mondays through Saturdays HE 0100-0600 and HE 2300-2400 PPT, and all day Sundays and Holidays.
	(n)  “Mandatory Reporting Rule” means the regulations entitled Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting set forth at Article 2 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.
	(o) “Pricing Node” or “PNode” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff.
	1. Events of Default; Remedies.  For purposes of this Transaction:
	(a) For the purposes of determining payments under Section 5.2 of the Master Agreement, with respect to this Transaction, the economic benefits or losses of the Non-Defaulting Party resulting from termination of this Transaction shall be based on ener...
	(b) The remedies for failure to deliver the Product provided for in the Master Agreement as amended by this Confirmation are the sole and exclusive remedies and all other remedies are waived.

	2. Failure to Deliver/Receive.  The maximum liability of Seller pursuant to Section 4.1 of the Master Agreement for any failure to schedule or deliver all or a portion of the Product shall not exceed and shall be limited to $2.01/MWh for the amount of...
	3. Importer/Compliance Obligation.  For Carbon Free Energy imported from an out-of-state Carbon Free Source, Seller will be the electricity importer into California for purposes of the Cap and Trade Regulations. The Parties acknowledge that Seller wil...
	4. Condition Precedent.  This Confirmation (and the transaction confirmed thereby) shall not be binding upon any Party until and unless both Powerex and PCEA have executed and delivered this Confirmation and the Master Agreement to the other Party bef...

	11 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on PCC1 Renewable Energy Purchase from Powerex
	11.1 20170525 PCE Reso for PCC1 Energy Purchase from Powerex
	11.2 Powerex PCEA-RPS Confirm - PCC1 (Bal 17)_REDACTED
	For the purposes of this Transaction, Buyer shall pay the Category 1 Product Contract Price and the Category 2 Product Contract Price, as applicable, as follows:
	(a) Invoicing and payment for Energy delivered to Buyer shall be in accordance with Article 6 of the Master Agreement and Buyer shall pay such invoices in accordance with the Master Agreement and this Confirmation.  For greater certainty, for Project ...
	(b) Invoicing and payment for all Green Attributes delivered on WREGIS to Buyer will be in accordance with Article 6 of the Master Agreement and Buyer shall pay such invoices in accordance with the Master Agreement and this Confirmation.
	For the purposes of this Agreement, a facility will be deemed to be certified as an eligible renewable energy resource prior to delivery of a Category Product if (i) the facility is certified as an eligible renewable energy resource by the CEC and (ii...
	(a) if the change in law or Regulatory Determination occurs prior to delivery of any of the applicable Category Product(s) hereunder, the Parties will have no liability to each other for any failure to schedule, deliver or purchase the affected Catego...
	(b) if the change in law or Regulatory Determination occurs after delivery of any of the applicable Category Product(s) hereunder, the Parties will have no liability to each other for any failure to schedule, deliver or purchase the affected Category ...
	(c) either Party may, by written notice to the other, immediately terminate the Transaction, without penalty, termination payment or liability of either Party to the other except as provided in paragraph (b) above.
	(a) “Alternate Eligible Facility” means an alternate Eligible Facility.
	(b) “Alternate Source” means an alternate source of supply of energy and associated Green Attributes generated by the same facility as a Designated Facility during the Generation Term and which Seller is entitled to pursuant to its purchase agreements...
	(c) “Buyer Eligibility Failure” means a failure of a Category Product to meet or satisfy the applicable Eligibility Requirements or any element or component thereof as a result of or if caused by any fact or circumstance within the control of Buyer, i...
	(d) “Buyer Shortfall” means that the quantity of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product received or purchased by Buyer pursuant to this Confirmation is less than the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, respe...
	(i) the failure of the Buyer to receive or purchase the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity generated by and/or attributable to the Project(s) and delivered to Buyer pursuant to this Confirmation for any reason...
	(ii) a Buyer Eligibility Failure;

	and the amount of such shortfall is the difference between:
	(iii) the greater of:
	A. the actual quantity of  Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product generated by and/or attributable to the Project(s) up to the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, respectively, and delivered to Buyer pursuan...
	B. the actual quantity of  Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product generated by and/or attributable to the Project(s) up to the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, respectively, that would have been delivered...
	in each case, for greater certainty, taking into account any Seller Shortfall; and

	(iv) the amount of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product received or purchased by Buyer pursuant to this Confirmation.

	(e) “CAISO Controlled Grid” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff.
	(f) “CAISO Tariff” means the applicable tariff and protocol provisions of the CAISO (as amended from time to time).
	(g) “California RPS Program” or “California Renewables Portfolio Standard” means the “California Renewables Portfolio Standard” program jointly administered by the CEC, the CPUC and the California Air Resources Board, as such program exists as of the ...
	(h) “Cap and Trade Regulations” means the regulations entitled California Cap on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Market-Based Compliance Mechanisms set forth at Article 5 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.
	(i) “Category 1 Product Eligibility Requirements” means, with respect to the Category 1 Product only, any applicable criteria or requirements of the California RPS Program in force and effect regarding the eligibility or qualification of the Category ...
	(j) “Category 2 Product Eligibility Requirements” means, with respect to Category 2 Product only, any applicable criteria or requirements of the California RPS Program in force and effect regarding the eligibility or qualification of the Category 2 Pr...
	(k) “Category Product” means Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product, as applicable.
	(l) “Compliance Obligation” has the meaning set forth by the Cap and Trade Regulations.
	(m) “CPUC” means the California Public Utilities Commission.
	(n) “Effective Date” means the date on which both Parties have executed and delivered this Confirmation.
	(o) “Eligible Facility” means a generation facility that is certified as an eligible renewable energy resource for the California RPS Program and from which Seller is entitled to energy and associated Green Attributes generated during the Generation T...
	(p) “Eligibility Requirements” means Category 1 Product Eligibility Requirements or Category 2 Product Eligibility Requirements, as applicable.
	(q) “Energy” means Project Energy or Substitute Energy, as applicable.
	(r) “Energy Commission” or “CEC” means the California Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission, which is also commonly referred to as the California Energy Commission.
	(s) “Generally Accepted Utility Practice” means a practice established by the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (“WECC”) or any successor regional reliability council, as such practice may be revised from time to time, or if no practice is so e...
	(t) “Green Attributes” means any and all credits, benefits, emissions reductions, offsets, and allowances, howsoever entitled, attributable to the generation from the Project, and its avoided emission of pollutants.  Green Attributes include but are n...
	(u) “Green Tag” and “Green Tag Reporting Rights” have the meanings set forth in the definition of “Green Attributes”, and for the purposes of this Transaction, “Green Tag Purchaser” means Buyer.
	(v) “Holiday” means any day designated as a holiday by NERC.
	(w) “Mandatory Reporting Rule” means the regulations entitled Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting set forth at Article 2 of Subchapter 10 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.
	(x)  “Off Peak” hours means Mondays through Saturdays hours ending (HE) 0100-0600 and HE 2300-2400 PPT, and all day Sundays and Holidays.
	(y) “Party” means Buyer or Seller, and “Parties” means both Buyer and Seller.
	(z) “Peak” hours means HE 0700-2200 PPT Mondays through Saturdays, excluding Holidays.
	(aa) “Pricing Node” or “PNode” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff.
	(bb) “Project” means Designated Facility up to the Seller’s contractual rights to the energy and Green Attributes produced by such Designated Facility.
	(cc) “Renewable Energy Credit” or “REC” means a renewable energy credit as defined by and in accordance with the California Public Utilities Code.
	(dd) “RPS Adjustment” means the reduction in the Compliance Obligation of an electricity importer authorized by and calculated in accordance with section 95852 (b)(4) of the Cap and Trade Regulations and section 95111(b)(5) of the Mandatory Reporting ...
	(ee) “RPS ID” means the “California Energy Commission RPS certification number”, the “identification number” and/or the “RPS ID”, as such terms are used by the CEC to describe the identification number for an eligible renewable energy resource that ha...
	(ff) “Scheduling Point” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff, including (without limitation) the SYLMARDC_2_N501 and MALIN_5_N101 Scheduling Points.
	(gg) “Seller Eligibility Failure” means a failure of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product to meet or satisfy the applicable Eligibility Requirements as a result of (i) any material requirements set forth in Section 6 of this Confirmation not being...
	(hh) “Seller Shortfall” means that the actual quantity of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product generated by and/or attributable to the Project(s) and delivered to Buyer pursuant to this Confirmation is less than the Category 1 Product Contract Qua...
	(i) Force Majeure;
	(ii) a Buyer Shortfall or Buyer Event of Default;
	(iii) a Regulatory Determination, provided Seller has satisfied its obligations pursuant to Section 2; or
	(iv) a change in law, provided Buyer has satisfied its obligation to use commercially reasonable efforts as provided herein

	and the amount of such shortfall is the difference between the Category 1 Product Contract Quantity or Category 2 Product Contract Quantity and the actual quantity of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product, respectively, generated by and/or attribut...
	(ii) “Specified Source” means “specified source”, as such term is defined in the Mandatory Reporting Rule.
	(jj) “WREGIS” means the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System or any successor renewable energy tracking program.
	(kk) “WREGIS Certificate” means a “Certificate” as defined by WREGIS in the WREGIS Operating Rules and designated by law as eligible for complying with the California RPS Program and for evidencing the Green Attributes associated with the Product.
	(ll) “WREGIS Operating Rules” means the operating rules and requirement adopted by WREGIS, as amended from time to time.

	1. Force Majeure.  For purposes of this Transaction, the Products shall be subject to Force Majeure and Section 3.3 of the Master Agreement such that, upon receipt of written notice of Force Majeure from the Party prevented by the Force Majeure from c...
	2. Negotiations Respecting Failure to Satisfy Eligibility Requirements.  In the event that a Category Product generated by and/or attributable to the Projects does not meet or satisfy the Eligibility Requirements for reasons other than a Buyer Eligibi...
	3. Anticipated Shortfall – Category 2 Product.  If Seller reasonably anticipates that there will be a Seller Shortfall in respect of the Category 2 Product Contract Quantity, Seller shall provide written notice to Buyer on or before September 15 of th...
	4. Failure to Deliver/Receive.  For purposes of this Transaction:
	(a) the references to the “Contract Price” in Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of the Master Agreement, and those Sections only, shall be deemed to refer to the Energy Price only, except in the event and to the extent that there is a Seller Shortfall or a Buyer S...
	(b) the definition of “Replacement Price” in Section 1.51 of the Master Agreement shall be amended by adding the following proviso at the end of the first sentence of such definition:
	(c) the definition of “Sales Price” in Section 1.53 of the Master Agreement shall be amended by adding the following proviso at the end of the first sentence of such definition:
	(d) In the event and to the extent that there is a Seller Shortfall that is not waived pursuant to Section 3 of this Confirmation, any amount payable pursuant to Section 4.1 of the Master Agreement shall only be calculated and payable on and with resp...
	(e) In the event of a Seller Shortfall, the maximum Replacement Price for the Green Attributes component of Bundled Renewable Energy shall not exceed and shall be limited to 2.5 multiplied by the Category 1 REC Price, for the Green Attributes componen...
	(f) In the event of a Buyer Shortfall, the minimum Sales Price for the Green Attributes component of Bundled Renewable Energy shall not be less than 0.5 multiplied by the Category 1 REC Price, for the Green Attributes component of Category 1 Product, ...

	5. Events of Default; Remedies.  For purposes of this Transaction:
	(a) For the purposes of determining payments under Section 5.2 of the Master Agreement, with respect to this Transaction, the economic benefits or losses of the Non-Defaulting Party resulting from termination of this Transaction shall be based on both...
	(b) The remedies for failure to deliver the Product (including Green Attributes) provided for in the Master Agreement as amended by this Confirmation are the sole and exclusive remedies associated with a failure to deliver, receive or schedule the Pro...

	6. Seller Eligibility Requirements and Non-Modifiable or Standard Terms.
	(a) Seller shall be responsible for ensuring that: (i) each Designated Facility is certified as an eligible renewable energy resource for the California RPS Program prior to delivery of Category 1 Product or Category 2 Product hereunder; and (ii) the ...
	(b) Seller warrants that all necessary steps to allow the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery under the contract [STC REC-2];
	(c) Seller hereby provides and conveys all Green Attributes associated with all electricity generation from the Project to Buyer as part of the Product being delivered.  Seller represents and warrants that Seller holds the rights to all Green Attribut...
	(d) For the purposes of this Transaction:
	(i) Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project qualifies and is certified by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy Resource (“ERR”) as such term is de...
	(ii) Seller and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attributes required for compliance with the Cal...

	For the purposes of STC 6 above, for the Category 2 Product, the Parties acknowledge that Substitute Energy, in substitution for Project Energy, and Green Attributes are delivered to Buyer.
	As used in this Section 6(d), “Delivery Term” has the same meaning as “Generation Term” provided that, for the purposes of STC 6 above with respect to any Project, the Parties agree that the representation and warranty therein applies only to the port...
	The Parties agree that, so long as the Seller has used commercially reasonable efforts to comply with a change in law resulting in either of the above representations and warranties becoming incorrect, it shall not be a Seller Shortfall or Seller Elig...

	7. Commercially Reasonable Efforts
	(a) A Party required to use or make “commercially reasonable efforts” pursuant to this Agreement shall not be required to incur more than $25,000 in aggregate direct or indirect costs, including lost profits, and out-of-pocket costs and expenses, to c...
	(b) In the event an issue or circumstance requiring a Party to use or make commercially reasonable efforts similarly affects one or more other transactions between the Parties, such $25,000 limit shall apply to all such transactions between the Partie...

	8. Meter and Scheduling Information. Throughout the Delivery Term, Seller shall provide to Buyer the following information as and to the extent necessary for Buyer to comply with the requirements of the California RPS Program: (i) meter data from the ...
	9. Specified Source – Category 1 Product. The Parties acknowledge that Seller intends to claim that the Category 1 Product delivered into the CAISO Balancing Authority, to meet the requirement under this Confirmation, is from a Specified Source. In or...
	10. RPS Adjustment – Category 2 Product. The Parties acknowledge that Seller intends to mitigate its Compliance Obligation for the Category 2 Product, which it imports into California under this Confirmation, by claiming the RPS Adjustment. Buyer agre...
	11. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. ...
	12. Condition Precedent.  This Confirmation (and the transaction confirmed thereby) shall not be binding upon any Party until and unless both Powerex and PCEA have executed and delivered this Confirmation and the Master Agreement to the other Party be...

	12 PCE Citizens Advisory Committee Reso 05-25-17
	14 PCE BOD April 27 2017 Meeting Minutes - FINAL
	15 PCE BOD 20170525 Memo on RA Purchase from Direct
	15.1 PCE BOD 20170525 Reso for RA Purchase from Direct Energy (1)
	15.2 Direct Energy Resource Adequacy_04282017 REDACTED



